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2022 2,000,000 4,478
10,000,000 2,000,000
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2009 Queensgate Trust
Company Ltd.
2014
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2022
KY1-1202
Queensgate 2,000,000 100
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2012 16

2022
( )
17,064,018.47 62.01
551,423.29 2.00
167,018.04 0.61
157,126.39 0.57
68,507.85 0.25
66,108.35 0.24
43,671.35 0.16
27,130.90 0.10
22,961.10 0.08
13,561.36 0.05
11,261.54 0.04
7,894.10 0.03
3,921.73 0.01
(2,265.30) (0.01)
(2,679.02) (0.01)
(4,374.72) (0.02)
(9,598.12) (0.03)
(16,243.71) (0.06)
(28,298.52) (0.10)
525,703.32 1.91
22,691,160.00 82.46
4,122,667.43 14.98
3,123,275.41 11.35
2,832,058.20 10.29
2,509,713.44 9.12
1,795,590.49 6.53
1,443,822.62 5.25
1,250,508.40 4.54
971,297.23 3.53
970,638.48 3.53
768,139.72 2.79
559,093.74 2.03
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454,760.18 1.65
298,728.44 1.09
209,698.01 0.76

(203,770.89) (0.74)
(245,057.98) (0.89)
(284,311.77) (1.03)
(673,039.51) (2.45)
(876,722.76) (3.19)
(899,567.77) (3.27)
(1,012,845.13) (3.68)
(1,607,568.76) (5.84)
(1,855,876.98) (6.74)
(2,011,560.96) (7.31)
(2,684,969.91) (9.76)
(11,908,540.22) |  (43.28)

EMU (19,388,368.48) |  (70.46)

348,950.67 1.27

18,490,095.75 67.19

9,027,966.10 32.81

27,518,061.85 100.00
( 3,368 )
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(2022 )
- « D « D « D « .
10/6/2022 3,700,000.00 2022/10/6 | 3,681,292.39 | 99.49439 | 3,680,117.42 99.462633 13.37
6/23/2022 2,700,000.00 2022/6/23 | 2,697,891.08 | 99.92189 | 2,697,079.44 99.891831 9.80
4/21/2022 2,300,000.00 2022/4/21 | 2,299,540.97 |  99.98004 | 2,299,837.09 99.992917 8.36
5/26/2022 2,080,000.00 2022/5/26 | 2,078,789.70 |  99.94181 | 2,079,126.11 99.957986 7.56
12/1/2022 1,800,000.00 2022/12/1 | 1,791,030.20 | 99.50168 | 1,786,394.97 99.244165 6.49
77712022 1,457,000.00 2022/7/7 1,455,456.83 |  99.89409 | 1,454,746.98 99.845366 5.29
47772022 1,100,000.00 2022/4/7 1,099,763.65 | 99.97851 | 1,099,973.41 99.997583 4.00
5/19/2022 1,070,000.00 2022/5/19 | 1,069,441.83 | 99.94783 | 1,069,650.46 99.967333 3.89
8/18/2022 900,000.00 2022/8/18 896,817.28 |  99.64636 897,092.59 99.676954 3.26
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2022
(012 11 30 58,498,377.09 7,159,616,372 8.61 1,054
(2013 11 30 21,386,126.53 2,617,448,026 8.08 989
(2014 11 30 11,237,986.27 1,375,417,140 9.78 1,197
(2015 11 30 13,610,125.41 1,665,743,249 11.18 1,368
(017 11 30 19,026,583.79 2,328,663,590 10.02 1,226
(2018 11 30 9,604,627.65 1,175,510,378 8.25 1,010
(2019 11 30 9,905,860.02 1,212,378,208 9.66 1,182
(2020 11 30 7,324,017.98 896,386,561 8.62 1,055
1

(2021 1 30 3,490,741.30 427,231,828 9.03 1,105
2021 11,504,899.70 1,408,084,674 10.00 1,224
4,561,321.93 558,260,191 10.27 1,257

4,166,230.73 509,904,979 9.69 1,186

3,952,888.48 483,794,021 9.68 1,185

3,890,027.64 476,100,483 9.76 1,195

3,883,094.44 475,251,929 9.86 1,207

10 3,778,133.57 462,405,768 9.59 1,174

11 3,490,741.30 427,231,828 9.03 1,105

12 3,586,621.52 438,966,608 9.33 1,142

2022 3,759,029.03 460,067,563 9.78 1,197
3,836,628.37 469,564,946 10.06 1,231

2,999,062.16 367,055,218 10.93 1,338
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(o012 11 30 ) 6,844,754.99 629,717,459 8.61 792

(2013 11 30 ) 1,603,717.88 147,542,045 7.97 733

(014 11 30 ) 840,469.91 77,323,232 9.62 885

(2015 11 30 ) 1,600,105.36 147,209,693 11.07 1,018

(2016 11 30 ) 4,131,630.14 380,109,973 9.60 883

(017 11 30 ) 2,549,737.03 234,575,807 9.60 883

4,779. 1 751 7. 707

(2018 11 30 ) 884,779.90 81,399,75 68 0

(2019 11 30 ) 4,028,086.39 370,583,948 8.67 798

(2020 11 30 ) 795,108.36 73,149,969 7.46 686
10

(021 11 30 ) 741,478.51 68,216,023 7.52 692

2021 907,528.52 83,492,624 8.51 783

928,968.01 85,465,057 8.72 802

873,653.07 80,376,082 8.20 754

869,295.60 79,975,195 8.16 751

874,677.07 80,470,290 8.21 755

881,197.12 81,070,135 8.27 761

10 854,199.94 78,586,394 8.01 737

11 741,478.51 68,216,023 7.52 692

12 763,513.92 70,243,281 7.74 712

2022 733,988.13 67,526,908 8.09 744

752,886.31 69,265,541 8.30 764

815,884.22 75,061,348 8.99 827
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(012 11 30 ) 4,648,427,171 8,575

2013 1 30 ) 1,609,086,528 8,042

014 11 30 ) 1,324,471,735 9,743

Qo5 11 30 ) 2,053,149,317 11,053

06 11 30 ) 4,631,462,053 9,558

017 1 30 ) 3,990,566, 124 9,618
2,94 1 7,7

2018 1 30 ) ,945,093,193 ,753

2018 1 30 ) 3,445,332,056 8,807

2020 11 30 ) 2,778,776,430 7,745

10

@21 11 30 ) 1,936,173,599 8,088

2021 2,600,999, 250 8,960

2,411,109,577 9,194

2,265,102,144 8,676

2,249,063,758 8,660

2,265,461,501 8,733

2,288,494,451 8,821

10 2,222,544 ,054 8,581

11 1,936,173,599 8,088

12 1,687,024,137 8,354

2022 1,757,998, 201 8,757

1,805,013,524 9,012

2,906,981,819 9,792

2022
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0.24 22

2012 16 2012 11 30
0.33 30

2012 12 2013 11 30
0.24 22

2013 12 2014 11 30
0.24 22

2014 12 2015 11 30
0.24 22

2015 12 2016 11 30
0.24 22

2016 12 2017 11 30
0.24 22

2017 12 2018 11 30
0.24 22

2018 12 2019 11 30
0.24 22

2019 12 2020 11 30

10

0.24 22

2020 12 2021 11 30
2021 15 0.02 2
2021 17 0.02 2
2021 15 0.02 2
2021 15 0.02 2
2021 16 0.02 2
2021 15 0.02 2
2021 10 15 0.02 2
2021 11 15 0.02 2
2021 12 15 0.02 2
2022 18 0.02 2
2022 15 0.02 2
2022 15 0.02 2
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)

14.25

21.16

13.44

13.53

19.39

13.59

12.06

10 4.43

( ) 100x

10
10 10,000
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7,627,488 833,234 6,794,254
(7,627,488) (833,234) (6,794, 254)
896,714 5,034,416 2,656,552
(896,714) (5,034,416) (2,656,552)
51,608 1,558,998 1,149,162
(51,608) (1,558,998) (1,149,162)
1,243,682 1,175,305 1,217,539
(1,243,682) (1,175,305) (1,217,539)
1,153,757 385,834 1,985,462
(1,153,757) (385,834) (1,985,462)
597,304 683,017 1,899,750
(597,304) (683,017) (1,899,750)
108,436 843,924 1,164,262
(108,436) (843,924) (1,164,262)
0 138,413 1,025,849
©) (138,413) (1,025,849)
360,389 199,294 1,186,944
(360,389) (199,294) (1,186,944)
13,543 813,861 386,627
10 (13,543) (813,861) (386,627)
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936,301 141,613 794,688
(936,301) (141,613) (794,688)
25,376 618,317 201,747
(25,376) (618,317) (201,747)

0 114,352 87,395

) (114,352) (87,395)
130,471 73,334 144,533
(130,471) (73,334) (144,533)
300,297 14,322 430,507
(300, 297) (14,322) (430,507)
108 165,129 265,486
(108) (165,129) (265,486)
137 150,434 115,189
137) (150, 434) (115,189)
349,284 14 464,459
(349, 284) (14) (464,459)
0 357,871 106,588
©0) (357,871) (106,588)

0 7,917 98,671

10

©0) (7,917) (98,671)
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596,389 54,271 542,118
(596, 389) (54,271) (542,118)
59,075 400,473 200,720
(59,075) (400,473) (200,720)
24,334 89,120 135,934
(24,334) (89,120) (135,934)
161,742 111,046 186,630
(161,742) (111,046) (186,630)
409,194 111,248 484,576
(409,194) (111,248) (484,576)
73,257 142,920 414,913
(73,257) (142,920) (414,913)
71,013 106,074 379,851
(71,013) (106,074) (379,851)
143,166 89,714 433,303
(143,166) (89,714) (433,303)
34,951 109,450 358,804
(34,951) (109,450) (358,804)
0 119,408 239,396
0) (119,408) (239,396)
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10

100 0.01 10 0.001
100 0.01 10 0.001
10,000 0.001

4.40

DIAMDeal ing@bnymel lon.com

4.0
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100 0.01 10 0.001
0.01 10 0.001
0.001
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0.001
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14
14

0.001 0.001
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2022 11 30
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2022
2025 11 28

11 30

30
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90

90
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131

23 103

122.39
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Aspect
2021 11 30

2021 11 30 2020 11 30
$ 13,798,194 1,688,761 $ 25,855,805 3,164,492
9,736,280 1,191,623 12,309,041 1,506,504
882,156 107,967 1,322,891 161,909
- - 2,904,163 355,441
123 15 1,431 175
$ 24,416,753 2,988,366 $ 42,393,331 5,188,520
$ 3,072,031 375,986  $ 4,694,696 574,584
63,558 7,779 63,161 7,730
37,983 4,649 55,674 6,814
30,358 3,716 44,104 5,398
25,189 3,083 36,920 4,519
14,874 1,820 14,874 1,820
4,073 498 3,254 398
1,942 238 1,931 236
800 98 1,172 143
30,448 3,727 31,467 3,851
3,281,256 401,593 4,947,253 605,494
21,135,497 2,586,773 37,446,078 4,583,025
$ 24,416,753 2,988,366 $ 42,393,331 5,188,520

Aspect
2022 30
2022 30
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Aspect
2021 11 30

2021 11 30 2020 11 30
$ 18,007 2,215 $ 317,701 38,883
2,626,203 321,421 (2,091,171) (255,938)
2,644,300 323,636 (1,773,470) (217,055)
410,801 50,278 593,576 72,648
294,843 36,086 397,245 48,619
280,080 34,279 - -
220,040 26,931 250,264 30,630
96,462 11,806 104,942 12,844
92,593 11,332 112,171 13,729
89,000 10,893 89,245 10,923
20,499 2,509 20,448 2,503
14,981 1,834 15,042 1,841
5,896 722 7,945 972
80,100 9,803 60,088 7,354
1,605,295 196,472 1,650,966 202,062
1,039,005 127,164 (3,424,436) (419,117)
(19,350) (2,368) (36,442) (4,460)
$ 1,019,655 124,796 $ (3,460,878) (423,577)
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Aspect
2021 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
$ 37,446,078 4,583,025 $ 47,495,275 5,812,947
130,391 15,959 5,778,559 707,238

(17,460,627) (2,137,006)  (12,366,878) (1,513,582)

1,019,655 124,796 (3,460,878) (423,577)

$ 21,135,497 2,586,773 $ 37,446,078 4,583,025
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Aspect
2021 11 30

2021 11 30 2020 11 30
$ 1,019,655 124,796 $ (3,460,878) (423,577)
(18,097) (2,215) (317,701) (38,883)
19,350 2,368 36,442 4,460
1,020,908 124,949 (3,742,137) (458,000)
12,057,611 1,475,731 8,566,346 1,048,435
2,572,761 314,880 498,087 60,961
1,308 160 - -
(1,622,665) (198,598) 119,645 14,643
- - (537,372) (65,769)
(43,332) (5,303) (30,852) (3,776)
13,986,591 1,711,819 4,873,717 596,494
18,097 2,215 317,701 38,883
14,004,688 1,714,034 5,191,418 635,378
3,034,554 371,399 6,493,559 794,747
(17,460,627) (2,137,006) (12,592,830) (1,541,236)
(19,350) (2,368) (36,442) (4,460)
(14,445,423) (1,767,975) (6,135,713) (750,950)
(440,735) (53,942) (944,295) (115,572)
1,322,891 161,909 2,267,186 277,481
$ 882,156 107,967 $ 1,322,891 161,909
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Aspect
2021 11 30
2011 29
Aspect
2012 16 2011
29
1107 25
2012
2020 12

2020 12
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2020 12

2020 12
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2021 11 30

2021 11 30
(2020 11 30 )
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2021 11 30 2020 11 30

$ 10,956,486  $ 20,801,616
2,841,708 5,054,189

$ 13,798,194  $ 25,855,805
$ (3,072,031) $ (4,694,696)
$ (3,072,031) $ (4,694,696)

2021 11 30 2020 11 30
$ 3,248,177  $ (2,178,188)

(621,974) 87,017

$ 2,626,203 $ (2,091,171)
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2021 11 30
$ 10,956,486 51.84
$ 10,956,486 51.84
$ 2,155,141 10.20
686,567 3.25
$ 2,841,708 13.45
$ 13,798,194 65.29
2021 11 30
$ (1,497,530) (7.09)
(1,574,501) (7.45)
$ (3,072,031) (14.54)
$ (3,072,031) (14.54)
2020 11 30
$ 20,801,616 55.55
$ 20,801,616 55.55
$ 2,329,658 6.22
2,724,531 7.28
$ 5,054,189 13.50

$ 25,855,805 69.05
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2020 11 30

$ (2.,403,489) (6.42)
(2,291,207) (6.12)
$ (4,694,696) (12.54)

$ (4,694,696) (12.54)
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2021 11 30
$ (1,120,695) $ 15,505
3,003,474 (194,843)
(26,893,030) (344,943)
2,822,171 (30,213)
13,038,302 (389, 354)
1,692,314 101,330
832,380 (34,305)
631,648 (6.068)
(13,045) (5,043)
$ (5,916,481) $ (887,934)
2020 11 30
$ 1,244,324  $ 14,746
(3,516,720) (96,893)
373,825,417 (35,923)
10,179,226 315,390
6,465,875 38,960
9,608,198 191,630
1,226,550 15,950
(1,911,595) (77,880)
5,140,001 67,344

$ 402,261,366 $ 433,324
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2021

46,391

2,069,385,868

712,518
4,578,828
553,801
41,799,280
28,557,029
1,276,708
100,000
2,150,000
2,300,000
550,000
6,300,000
800,000
975,000
2,084,196
220,483,545
10,803,945,073
5,765,976
77,305,320
130,238,701
148,044,751
119,316,968
17,539,962
1,644,914
45,838,073
116,705
5,067,794
41,948,213
1,025,000
1,075,000
1,200,000
1,575,000
1,925,000
2,200,000
2,325,000
2,600,000

11 30

64,207

18,035,250

125,000
4,300,000
600,000
50,000
4,400,000
50,000
113,232
21,315,127
824,780,445
13,972,744
63,752,320
676,903
4,468,646
2,425,000
600,000
750,000
1,800,000
1,025,000
1,000,000
1,300,000
100,000
1,700,000
400,000
900,000
25,000
150,000
1,500,000
3,184,615
5,938,490
972,763,810
32,884,276
2,273,065,435
8,403,675,138
3,142,338
2,371,860
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2021

2021

2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021

12

12

12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12

30

30

15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15

$ 655

273,136

997
115,490
3,170
430
79,748
23

59
84,812
43,571
2,898
74,432
7,131
19,842
21,335
5,171
3,065
26,816
2,297
18,907
9,294
585
8,617
4,099
8,855
7

409
8,603
16,029
24,872
26,389
47,214
8,797
100,227
24,336
16,699
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3,200,000 104,613,759 2021 12 15 95,135
3,600,000 396,840,477 2021 12 15 90,380
3,762,267 5,350,000 2021 12 15 113,613
300,000 21,734,443 2021 12 15 8,579
4,600,000 5,797,358 2021 12 15 64,593
4,800,000 132,625,971 2021 12 15 30,311
450,000 1,806,159 2021 12 15 6,289
450,000 22,627,808 2021 12 15 1,347
5,558,785 4,100,000 2021 12 15 112,347
5,875,982 8,000,000 2021 12 15 179,248
750,000 10,708,208,928 2021 12 15 3,608
750,000 55,996,455 2021 12 15 5,873
8,016,948 6,800,000 2021 12 15 313,150
900,000 13,726,753 2021 12 15 40,606
806,817 50,000 2021 12 15 512
44,946,085 350,000 2022 16 419
350,000 5,070,660,000 2022 16 114

2,155,141
857,088 621,133 2021 12 30 (10,612)
6,671 766,714 2021 12 30 (112)
3,200,000 2,383,348 2021 12 15 (104,654)
5,708,634 1,075,000 2021 12 15 (65,519)
2,238,572 1,800,000 2021 12 15 (48,714)
365,511 400,000 2021 12 15 (1,905)
2,208,856,280 2,800,000 2021 12 15 (135,079)
3,430,293,850 900,000 2021 12 15 (42,894)
43,314,074 1,700,000 2021 12 15 (3,381)
1,000,000 130,062,598 2021 12 15 (17,350)
150,000 1,543,376 2021 12 15 (290)
175,000 821,756 2021 12 15 (1,219)
2,500,000 2,915,103 2021 12 15 (82,824)
200,000 2,051,548 2021 12 15 (702)
400,000 342,660 2021 12 15 (2,025)
600,000 644,154 2021 12 15 (21,830)
900,000 23,074,116 2021 12 15 (4,563)
1,700,000 2,342,108 2021 12 15 (83,829)
2,645,799 3,125,000 2021 12 15 (25,671)
1,227,926,075 3,500,000 2021 12 15 (150,719)
7,169,394,415 500,000 2021 12 15 (273)
143,317,004 1,925,000 2021 12 15 (20,485)
88,161,290 800,000 2021 12 15 (20,310)
931,704,341 800,000 2021 12 15 (14,569)
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41,596,460 2,050,000 2021 12 15 (117,450)
17,653,205 1,750,000 2021 12 15 (35,538)
6,600,000 4,693,203 2021 12 15 (192,060)
401,628 100,000 2021 12 15 (1,334)
5,037,124 100,000 2021 12 15 (126)
15,748,402 3,425,000 2021 12 15 (57,358)
170,631,779 2,300,000 2021 12 15 (12,121)
17,055,205 1,700,000 2021 12 15 (36,459)
1,346,052 1,000,000 2021 12 15 (14,488)
43,203,982 1,300,000 2021 12 15 (17,735)
29,083,862 1,050,000 2021 12 15 (4,044)
1,325,000 1,579,078,577 2021 12 15 (6,170)
1,700,000 193,950, 898 2021 12 15 (15,284)
100,000 402,030,850 2021 12 15 (453)
100,000 7,597,003 2021 12 15 (1,863)
100,000 3,384,768 2021 12 15 (458)
2,750,000 17,680,064 2021 12 15 (23,476)
200,000 256,281 2021 12 15 (494)
25,000 141,411 2021 12 15 (6)
275,000 376,353 2021 12 15 (547)
3,100,000 2,875,645 2021 12 15 (31,995)
350,000 1,444,051 2021 12 15 (4,754)
350,000 17,759,400 2021 12 15 (2,125)
350,000 9,734,308 2021 12 15 79)
374,394 550,000 2021 12 15 (702)
400,000 335,856,835 2021 12 15 (5,202)
50,000 3,763,396 2021 12 15 (11)
50,000 808,781 2021 12 15 (635)
505,034 7,265,130,581 2021 12 15 (1,366)
575,000 12,514,649 2021 12 15 (6,424)
70,885 100,000 2021 12 15 (324)
775,000 2,480,531 2021 12 15 (10,899)
901,278 800,000 2021 12 15 (5,051)
5,894,380 400,000 2021 12 15 (30,970)

$ (1,497,530)
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2020 11 30
796,822 583,208 2020 12 30 2,942
5,575,764 6,100,000 2020 12 16 54,347
45,375,500 6,600,000 2020 12 16 289,272
2,600,000 2,807,251 2020 12 16 8,974
1,800,000 645,514,818 2020 12 16 2,807
950,000 117,890,072 2020 12 16 5,181
1,900,000 8,469,611 2020 12 16 11,328
900,000 9,154,219 2020 12 16 5,056
8,300,000 9,808,629 2020 12 16 111,549
4,400,000 5,739,495 2020 12 16 133,587
543,495,094 1,500,000 2020 12 16 16,188
11,298,348,973 764,697 2020 12 16 31,792
48,325,631 650,000 2020 12 16 2,093
56,431,803 450,000 2020 12 16 3,194
747,530,945 7,100,000 2020 12 16 66,890
29,192,822 2,700,000 2020 12 16 64,740
1,086,241 300,000 2020 12 16 1,183
131,794,026 2,700,000 2020 12 16 37,885
4,278,032 950,000 2020 12 16 5,868
53,991,948 700,000 2020 12 16 6,114
75,640,678 7,300,000 2020 12 16 121,533
3,664,442 2,700,000 2020 12 16 35,071
82,294,103 2,650,000 2020 12 16 70,173
18,756,061 650,000 2020 12 16 7,245
300,000 1,974,653 2020 12 16 192
50,000 705,973,529 2020 12 16 232
350,000 25,869,859 2020 12 16 919
300,000 31,234,797 2020 12 16 539
3,475,000 12,378,089 2020 12 16 42,909
1,250,000 94,797,655 2020 12 16 10,223
2,525,000 71,584,023 2020 12 16 16,572
12,000,000 8,697,537 2020 12 16 128,103
2,704,117 500,000 2020 12 16 5,474
7,735,695 5,900,000 2020 12 16 67,839
1,412,664,443 1,825,000 2020 12 16 30,049
3,330,881,163 900,000 2020 12 16 25,622
63,960,010 2,400,000 2020 12 16 41,779
50,000 1,310,921 2020 12 16 112
100,000 89,387 2020 12 16 207
2,625,627 2,900,000 2020 12 16 38,577
13,191,457 3,900,000 2020 12 16 90,150
6,677,507,948 5,800,000 2020 12 16 223,613
36,506,325 1,700,000 2020 12 16 108,045
10,700,000 7,214,603 2020 12 16 298,104
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1,650,000 8,724,419 2020 12 16 19,164
150,000 114,012,725 2020 12 16 284
350,000 387,413,728 2020 12 16 524
50,000 1,005,790 2020 12 16 186
22,955,210 1,400,000 2020 12 17 83,877
150,000 18,646,376 2021 17 668
300,000 400,221 2021 17 515
50,000 712,150,000 2021 17 168

2,329,658
2,783,973,262 26,861,290 2020 12 30 (158,109)
2,361,971 2,200,000 2020 12 16 (22,378)
1,537,090 1,700,000 2020 12 16 (3,411)
3,289,188 500,000 2020 12 16 (609)
100,000 108,404 2020 12 16 (133)
2,000,000 723,079,564 2020 12 16 (16,323)
3,250,000 407,073,250 2020 12 16 (18,373)
5,200,000 56,310,039 2020 12 16 (134,475)
1,800,000 8,166,475 2020 12 16 (27,321)
2,400,000 25,144,764 2020 12 16 (72,305)
200,000 239,477 2020 12 16 (436)
285,444,556 800,000 2020 12 16 (6,077)
2,830,322,636 200,000 2020 12 16 (474)
169,877,991 2,300,000 2020 12 16 (7,713)
461,611,100 3,750,000 2020 12 16 (56,351)
270,205,483 2,600,000 2020 12 16 (9,428)
8,451,575 800,000 2020 12 16 (3,161)
2,851,097 800,000 2020 12 16 (9,472)
1,340,615 300,000 2020 12 16 (906)
18,933,613 250,000 2020 12 16 (2,384)
8,142,805 800,000 2020 12 16 (3,825)
133,721 100,000 2020 12 16 (193)
13,581,980 450,000 2020 12 16 (1,057)
38,351,909 1,350,000 2020 12 16 (6,083)
5,100,000 4,674,156 2020 12 16 (59,181)
1,950,000 13,049,268 2020 12 16 (31,244)
6,585,537 5,600,000 2020 12 16 (107,595)
5,692,492 4,400,000 2020 12 16 (180,590)
900,000 13,422,698,024 2020 12 16 (46,247)
1,000,000 74,658,331 2020 12 16 (7,419)
3,000,000 315,430,916 2020 12 16 (24,167)
275,000 993,426 2020 12 16 (449)
2,050,000 99,368,506 2020 12 16 (14,278)
950,000 74,687,187 2020 12 16 (26,769)
1,800,000 2,459,575 2020 12 16 (35,781)
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1,400,000 44,125,517 2020 12 16 (58,538)
4,375,000 126,458,746 2020 12 16 (56,332)
400,000 296,048 2020 12 16 (1,860)
1,581,722 300,000 2020 12 16 (4,332)
258,912 200,000 2020 12 16 (257)
546,655,550 725,000 2020 12 16 (7,156)
9,156,738 350,000 2020 12 16 (1,678)
3,400,000 91,146,542 2020 12 16 (83,599)
4,500,000 4,111,982 2020 12 16 (110,228)
668,065 750,000 2020 12 16 (4,674)
276,053,675 250,000 2020 12 16 (979)
5,028,110 250,000 2020 12 16 (974)
700,000 492,285 2020 12 16 (799)
5,322,847 7,500,000 2020 12 16 (193,178)
1,150,000 6,410,442 2020 12 16 (48,289)
4,200,000 5,544,108 2020 12 16 (77,101)
1,550,000 1,216,257,625 2020 12 16 (47,136)
1,800,000 6,889,859,713 2020 12 16 (114,630)
2,600,000 8,909,660 2020 12 16 (94,993)
2,500,000 2,956,547,895 2020 12 16 (167,028)
700,000 15,523,565 2020 12 16 (68,834)
2,104,929 3,200,000 2020 12 16 (141,862)
200,000 3,346,215 2020 12 17 (16,307)
13,072,094 850,000 2020 12 17 (4,990)
1,429,100,000 100,000 2021 17 -
24,686,876 200,000 2021 17 (2,571)
266,711 200,000 2021 17 47)

(2,403,489)
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2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2021 11 30
) (@) ®

$ 1,199,033 $(667,948) 3 - 3 531,085

273,791 (10,724) - 263,067

682,317 (682,317) - -

686,567 (686,567) - -

1,118,659 - - 1,118,659

3,653,097 - - 3,653,097

1,657,372 (136,541) - 1,520,831

3,307,152 (887,934) - 2,419,218

$ 12,577,988 $(3,072,031) $ - $9,505,957

(¢)) () ®

$ 667,948 $ (667,948) $ - $ -

10,724 (10,724) - -

818,858 (682,317) (136,541) -

1,574,501 (686,567) (887,934) -

$ 3,072,031 $ (2,047,556) $(1,024,475) $ -
@
2)
®3)
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2020 11 30
@ @ ®?)

$ 1,165,007  $(1,054,495) $ - $ 110,512

2,942 (2,942) - i}

1,161,709 (1,161,709) - -

2,724,531 (2,291,207) - 433,324

1,531,946 - - 1,531,946

3,939,857 (155,167) - 3,784,690

1,579,076 (29,176) - 1,549,900

5,258,162 - - 5,258,162

$ 17,363,230  $(4,694,696) $ - $ 12,668,534

@ @ ®?)

$ 1,054,495 $ (1,054,495) $ - % -

158,109 (2,942) (155,167) -

1,190,885 (1,161,709) (29,176) -

2,291,207 (2,291,207) - -

$ 4,694,696 $ (4,510,353) $ (184,343) $ -
(€H)
@)
©)

2011 29
0.01 3,750
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2012 27
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2012 27
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2011 29

3,750

0.95

250
250 500 0.06 500
89,000

0.63
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1.5

20

3.25

2012 27

0.02

81/229



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 11 30 2020 11 30

$ (19,350) $ (36,442)

$ (19,350) $ (36,442)
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10.00
10.00
10,000
2012 16
100 0.01
10 0.001
100 0.01 10 0.001
10,000 0.001
2021 11 30
1,186,944 106,588 358,804 1,652,336
13,544 - - 13,544
(813,861) (7,917) (119,408) (941,186)
386,627 98,671 239,396 724,694
$ 9.03  AU$ 751 \  8,087.74
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2020 11 30

1,025,849 464,459 433,303 1,923,611
360,389 - 34,951 395,340
(199,294) (357,871) (109,450) (666,615)
1,186,944 106,588 358,804 1,652,336
$ 8.62 AU$ 7.46 \  7,744.54

2021 11 30 2020 11 30
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11 30

2021 11 30

2021 11 30
10
1,161,410 2020 2,072,779 2021 11 30
10
(1,161,410) 2020  (2,072,779)
11 30

11 30

2021 11 30 (26,893,030)

10
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10

$ (1,120,695) 112,070
3,003,474 309,347
2,822,171 282,217
13,038,302 1,303,830
1,692,314 169,231
832,380 83,238
631,648 63,165
(13,045) 1,305

$ 20,976,549

2020 11 30 373,825,417
10
10

$ 1,244,324 124,432
(3.516,720) 351,672
10,179,226 1,017,923
6,465,875 646,588
9,608,198 960,820
1,226,550 122,655
(1,911,595) 191,160
5,140,091 514,009

$ 28,435,949

11 30
11 30
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2021 11 30

4,517 272,732 292,698 845 23,456 15,075

(129,902)  (13,561) (141,466) (49,916)  (56,306)  (13,365)  (4,231)  (3,228)

2020 11 30

87/229



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

22,846 2,368 43,101 112,297 152,330 218,853 935 62,429 37,975

(54,268) (138,363)  (1,354)  (1.372)  (2,729)

2021 11 30
10 10 10 10 10 10
452 27,273 29,270 85 2,346 1,508
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
(12,990)  (1,356) (14,147)  (4,992)  (5,631)  (1,337) (423) (323)
2020 11 30
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
2,285 237 4,310 11,230 15,233 21,885 93 6,243 3,797
10 10 10 10 10
(5,427)  (13,836) (135) @37) ©73)
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2021 11 30
488,354 2020 70,275
2021 11 30
10
2021 11 30 10
$ 74,270 $ 348,925
(39, 656) 6,034
15,385 298,461
93,660 8,514
(14,031) 471,403
(113,462) 113,654
56,272 170,627
56,880 134,311
(5,023) 457
770 70
(101,977) 9,271
1,976 180
57,601 5,236
(38,728) 3,520
37,271 3,389
225,334 566,456
28,518 318,816
5,148 34,988
31,946 3,195
(12,326) 213,767
64,080 313,592
(11,357) 236,136
(76,660) 17,666
(79,149) 47,739
4,300 29,569
7,951 20,795
(5,405) 189,460
9,301 159,070
77,351 177,265
34,791 256,522
9,513 49,050

$ 394,544
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2021 11 30 10
$ (53,964) $ 5,396
(102,237) 10,224
(40,714) 4,071
(125,369) 12,537
(54,416) 5,442
8,369 837
(27,141) 2,714
(22,052) 2,205
(2,505) 251
4,555 456
(10,798) 1,080
(12,423) 1,242
(31,656) 3,166
(18,003) 1,800
$ (488,354)
2020 11 30
10
2020 11 30 10
$ (66,935) $ 360,380
(27,983) 202,799
(9,519) 189,048
(13,537) 1,230
(8,245) 269,176
(23,959) 82,604
257,611 510,761
(89,008) 98,901
(43,386) 3,944
(76,118) 6,920
(3,405) 310
(68,252) 6,204
(72,896) 6,627
(11,031) 1,003
50,459 4,587
3,518 346,609
(46,935) 13,358
(14,529) 5,017
(4,843) 129,516
(12,120) 158,788
33,834 643,383
56,130 325,613

38,423 123,842
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155,443 575,740
34,171 261,583
23,607 67,361
(12,816) 126,282
(903) 99,910
10,578 171,058
(38,598) 493,860
62,580 211,260
$ 81,336
2020 11 30 10
$ (20,287) $ 2,029
78,203 7,820
(1,103) 110
108,098 10,810
(39,514) 3,951
(5,760) 576
(99,487) 9,949
(25,871) 2,587
10,303 1,030
(8,845) 884
(1,276) 128
545 55
(36,084) 3,608
(29,197) 2,920
$ (70,275)
2021 11 30 o
10,957,000 2021-2022
2020 11 30 o
20,804,000 2020-2021
2021 11 30 (26,893,030) 2020 11 30

373,825,417
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2021 2020 11 30
10
2021 11 30

10,956,486 51.84
2020 11 30

20,801,616 55.55
2021 11 30

2020 11
2021 11 30
2020 11 30

1970

92/229



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 11 30

12

2021 11 30

2021 11 30 12
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$ (2,602,051) $ (469,090) $  (890) $ (3,072,031)
2020 11 30
$ (4,417,660) $ (230,709) $ (46,327) $ (4,694,696)
13
2021 11 30
$ 10,956,486 $ $ $ 10,956,486
2,155,141 2,155,141
686,567 686,567
$ 11,643,053 $ 2,155,141 $ $ 13,798,194
$ $ (1,497,530) $ $ (1,497,530)
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(1,574,501) (1,574,501)
$ (1,574,501) $ (1,497,530) $ $ (3,072,031)
2020 11 30

$ 20,801,616 $ $ $ 20,801,616

2,329,658 2,329,658

2,724,531 2,724,531

$ 23,526,147 $ 2,329,658 $ $ 25,855,805

$ $ (2,403,489) $ $ (2.403,489)

(2,291,207) (2,291,207)

$ (2,291,207) $ (2,403,489) $ $ (4,694,696)
11 30
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4,328,455
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Aspect
2021 11 30
712,518 125,000 2021 12 15 997
4,578,828 4,300,000 2021 12 15 115,490
553,801 600,000 2021 12 15 3,170
41,799,280 50,000 2021 12 15 430
28,557,029 4,400,000 2021 12 15 79,748
1,276,708 50,000 2021 12 15 23
100,000 113,232 2021 12 15 59
2,150,000 21,315,127 2021 12 15 84,812
2,300,000 824,780,445 2021 12 15 43,571
550,000 13,972,744 2021 12 15 2,898
6,300,000 63,752,320 2021 12 15 74,432
800,000 676,903 2021 12 15 7,131
975,000 4,468,646 2021 12 15 19,842
2,084,196 2,425,000 2021 12 15 21,335
220,483,545 600,000 2021 12 15 5,171
10,803,945,073 750,000 2021 12 15 3,065
5,765,976 1,800,000 2021 12 15 26,816
77,305,320 1,025,000 2021 12 15 2,297
130,238,701 1,000,000 2021 12 15 18,907
148,044,751 1,300,000 2021 12 15 9,294
119,316,968 100,000 2021 12 15 585
17,539,962 1,700,000 2021 12 15 8,617
1,644,914 400,000 2021 12 15 4,099
45,838,073 900,000 2021 12 15 8,855
116,705 25,000 2021 12 15 7
5,067,794 150,000 2021 12 15 409
41,948,213 1,500,000 2021 12 15 8,603
1,025,000 3,184,615 2021 12 15 16,029
1,075,000 5,938,490 2021 12 15 24,872
1,200,000 972,763,810 2021 12 15 26,389
1,575,000 32,884,276 2021 12 15 47,214
1,925,000 2,273,065,435 2021 12 15 8,797
2,200,000 8,403,675,138 2021 12 15 100,227
2,325,000 3,142,338 2021 12 15 24,336
2,600,000 2,371,860 2021 12 15 16,699
3,200,000 104,613,759 2021 12 15 95,135
3,600,000 396,840,477 2021 12 15 90,380
3,762,267 5,350,000 2021 12 15 113,613
300,000 21,734,443 2021 12 15 8,579
4,600,000 5,797,358 2021 12 15 64,593
4,800,000 132,625,971 2021 12 15 30,311
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450,000 1,806,159 2021 12 15 6,289
450,000 22,627,808 2021 12 15 1,347
5,558,785 4,100,000 2021 12 15 112,347
5,875,982 8,000,000 2021 12 15 179,248
750,000 10,708,208,928 2021 12 15 3,608
750,000 55,996,455 2021 12 15 5,873
8,016,948 6,800,000 2021 12 15 313,150
900,000 13,726,753 2021 12 15 40,606
806,817 50,000 2021 12 15 512
2,069,385,868 18,035,250 2021 12 30 273,136
46,391 64,207 2021 12 30 655
44,946,085 350,000 2022 16 419
350,000 5,070, 660,000 2022 16 114

$ 2,155,141
3,200,000 2,383,348 2021 12 15§ (104,654)
5,708,634 1,075,000 2021 12 15 (65,519)
2,238,572 1,800,000 2021 12 15 (48,714)
365,511 400,000 2021 12 15 (1,905)
2,208,856, 280 2,800,000 2021 12 15 (135,079)
3,430,293,850 900,000 2021 12 15 (42,894)
43,314,074 1,700,000 2021 12 15 (3,381)
1,000,000 130,062,598 2021 12 15 (17,350)
150,000 1,543,376 2021 12 15 (290)
175,000 821,756 2021 12 15 (1,219)
2,500,000 2,915,103 2021 12 15 (82,824)
200,000 2,051,548 2021 12 15 (702)
400,000 342,660 2021 12 15 (2,025)
600,000 644,154 2021 12 15 (21,830)
900,000 23,074,116 2021 12 15 (4,563)
1,700,000 2,342,108 2021 12 15 (83,829)
2,645,799 3,125,000 2021 12 15 (25,671)
1,227,926,075 3,500,000 2021 12 15 (150, 719)
7,169,394,415 500,000 2021 12 15 ©73)
143,317,004 1,925,000 2021 12 15 (20, 485)
88,161,290 800,000 2021 12 15 (20,310)
931,704,341 800,000 2021 12 15 (14,569)
41,596,460 2,050,000 2021 12 15 (117,450)
17,653,205 1,750,000 2021 12 15 (35,538)
6,600,000 4,693,203 2021 12 15 (192,060)
401,628 100,000 2021 12 15 (1,334)
5,037,124 100,000 2021 12 15 (126)
15,748,402 3,425,000 2021 12 15 (57,358)
170,631,779 2,300,000 2021 12 15 (12,121)
17,055,205 1,700,000 2021 12 15 (36,459)
1,346,052 1,000,000 2021 12 15 (14,488)
43,203,982 1,300,000 2021 12 15 (17,735)
29,083,862 1,050,000 2021 12 15 (4,044)
1,325,000 1,579,078,577 2021 12 15 (6,170)
1,700,000 193,950,898 2021 12 15 (15,284)
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100,000 402,030, 850 2021 12 15 (453)
100,000 7,597,003 2021 12 15 (1,863)
100,000 3,384,768 2021 12 15 (458)
2,750,000 17,680,064 2021 12 15 (23,476)
200,000 256,281 2021 12 15 (494)
25,000 141,411 2021 12 15 (6)
275,000 376,353 2021 12 15 (547)
3,100,000 2,875,645 2021 12 15 (31,995)
350,000 1,444,051 2021 12 15 (4,754)
350,000 17,759,400 2021 12 15 (2,125)
350,000 9,734,308 2021 12 15 79)
374,394 550,000 2021 12 15 (702)
400,000 335,856,835 2021 12 15 (5,202)
50,000 3,763,396 2021 12 15 (11)
50,000 808,781 2021 12 15 (635)
505,034 7,265,130,581 2021 12 15 (1,366)
575,000 12,514,649 2021 12 15 (6,424)
70,885 100,000 2021 12 15 (324)
775,000 2,480,531 2021 12 15 (10,899)
901,278 800,000 2021 12 15 (5,051)
5,894,380 400,000 2021 12 15 (30,970)
857,088 621,133 2021 12 30 (10,612)
6,671 766,714 2021 12 30 (112)

$ (1,497,530)

12/09/2021 1,100,000 1,099,989 1,099,993 $ 4
12/16/2021 2,200,000 2,199,964 2,199,936 (28)
12/23/2021 2,700,000 2,699,964 2,699,785 (179
01/06/2022 2,657,000 2,656,909 2,656,890 (19)
01/13/2022 1,500,000 1,499,949 1,499,946 (©))
02/03/2022 800,000 799,943 799,936 @)

10,956,718 10,956,486 $ (232)
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90 2023 12 (15) 663
90 * @) 375
90 2024 (16) 1,063
90 2023 [C)) 113
90 2023 12 (25) 8,947
90 2023 (24) 3,660
90 2024 (25) 6,267
90 2023 (26) 11,662
2021 12 @ 2,867

2021 12 ) 2,915

2021 12 @ 3,244

2021 12 ) 965

2021 12 @ 925

2022 ©)) 7,510

2022 ®) 1,250

IC 2022 (ICE) ) 4,953

IC 2022 [C)) 1,979

2022 3 14,944

2022 31,425

c 2022 4 26,363

2022 3,188

2000  Mini 2021 12 (6) 31,170

2021 12 ) 2,388

bobl 2021 12 33 19,780

2021 12 15 24,423

2021 12 1 657

- 2021 12 19 3,702

FTSE  A50 2021 12 (54) 17,937
RBOB 2022 15 2,486
2021 12 @ 1,873

2021 12 ©)) 6,497

ICE ECX 2022 12 3 47,204
10 OSE 2021 12 7 17,239

2021 12 ) 5,069

3 2021 12 10 2,694

200 2021 12 (20) 68,461
2022 13 2,700

2022 3 480
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2022 8 $ 6,530

LME 2021 12 15 - 113,851
LME 2021 12 15 - 2,778
LME ( )2021 12 15 - 59,165
225 SGX 2021 12 @ 4,730

30 OMX 2021 12 (11) 4,555

2022 1 (5) 15,745

EURO 2022 2 1,060

SGX NIFTY 50 2021 12 ) 4,833
Euro BTP 2021 12 25 1,800
2022 ) 4,800

2022 1 ) 187

VSTOXX 2021 12 1 56
WT1 2022 1 (®) 76,439
$ 686,567

10 2021 12 (39) $ (10,559)
2021 12 59 (27,707)
2023 (10) (890)
BIST30 2021 12 (238) (31,656)
2022 (ICE) 6 (73,910)
2022 (ICE) 2 (24,000)
CAC40 2021 12 13 (61,229)
10 2022 (42) (79,754)
WCE 2022 5 (1,957)
CATTLE FEEDER 2022 1 0 (7,338)
CBOE VIX 2022 1 @ (3,328)
10tn 2022 5 (910)
2022 1 (4,225)
2022 5 (4,300)
No. 2022 15 (34,305)
2022 3 (2,505)
DAX 2021 12 2 (49,593)
MINI e CBOT 2021 12 11 (53,680)
50 2021 12 17 (38,717)
BuxI30 BND 2021 12 ) (12,387)

FTSE100 2021 12 12 $ (29,760)
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FTSE 2021 12 14 (9,810)
FTSE 40 2021 12 ) (18,003)
FTSE 2021 12 6 (60,423)
RBOB 2022 1 1 (5,426)
100 2022 2 (18,800)
KC HRW 2022 12 (7,038)
10 2021 12 (55) (93,207)
2022 4 (2,610)

2022 @) (5,830)

LME 2022 16 5 (17,156)
LME 2022 16 1 (12,659)
LME 2022 16 2 (10,301)
LME 2021 12 15 - (3,086)
LME 2022 16 6 (9,848)
LME 2021 12 15 - (5,817)
LME ( ) 2022 16 5 (15,598)
2022 (31) (62,124)

2022 2 (23,275)

2022 1 3 (34,575)

EURO 2022 25 (4,571)

MSCI EAFE 2021 12 5 (19,350)
MSCI Emg Mkt 2021 12 7 (1,515)
MSCI 2021 12 8 (10,798)
100 E-MINI 2021 12 2 (2,390)

2022 5 (16,470)

2022 1 7 (53,840)

225 CME 2021 12 D) (1,275)

NY uLSD 2022 1 4 (63,126)
MGE 2022 5 (9,900)

S&P 60 2021 12 18 (19,636)
S&P500 E-MINI 2021 12 5 (3,225)
SET50 2021 12 38 (12,423)
SGX 62 2022 1 2 (2,564)
2022 1 (10) (8,600)

2022 1 11 (40,404)

SP1200 2021 12 7 (15,699)

WORLD 2022 6 $ (8,758)

WORLD 2022 15 (22,960)

SMI 2021 12 17 (40,714)

2021 12 4 (49,109)
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10 (CBT 2022 (48) (86,422)

CBT 2022 ®) (742)

CBT 2022 ®) (33,258)

ULTRA CBT 2022 (5) (40,938)

CBT 2022 1 (3,550)

CBT 2022 3 (6,575)

ICE 2022 1 (1,044)

WT 2022 2 (26,349)

$ (1,574,501)
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K - AN = Jl ™
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
3 NOVEMBER 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)
30 November 30 November
2021 2040
Assels
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Motes 3, 4 and 9) £ 13,798,194 8 25,855 805
Margin accourts 9,736,280 12308,041
Cash and cash equivalents (Motes 2 and 9) 381506 1,322,891
Subscription receivable s 2,004,163
Other assels 123 1431
Total assels £ 24,416,753 5 42,3935 351
Liabilities
Financial liabil#ies at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 3, 4 and %) § 3072031 8§ 4,694,696
Professional fee payable 63,558 63,161
Agent and distribastor fee pavable (Note 6) 37,983 55,674
Sub-investment manager management fee payable (Note 6) 30,358 4,004
Investment managerment fee pavable (Note 6) 215,180 36,920
Administration fee pavable (Note &) 14,874 14,5874
Trustee fee payable (Note 6) 4,073 3,254
Masmger lee pavable (Nole &) 1,942 1,931
Custody fee pay able (Wole &) 200 LI172
Other acorued expenses 30,448 31467
Laabilities (excluding net assets attributable to Unitholder) 3,281,2% 4,947,253
et assets attributable o Unitholder 21135497 37446078
Total liabilities 5 416,753 8 42,393 331

Approved for issnance on behalf of FirstCaribbean Intemational Bank and Trest Company (Cayman) Limited, not in
its ndividual cageacity but solely as Trustee to DIAM Covman Trust - Aspect Managed Futures Fund by:

Ronnie Cuthbert Date: 30 March 2022
Jeowy Matewm

Approved for issuance on behalt of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd., not in its individual capacity but
solely as Manager to DEAM Cayman Trust by:

Karla Roddden Date; 30 March 2022
Sinead Wagner

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.

- -
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021
(Expreseed in United States dollars)

Income

Interest income
Net chamges m Dar value on Gnancial assets and financal
liabalities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total ned income(1oss)

Expenses

Sub-investment manager management Nee (Note &)
Agent and distributor fee (Mote 6)
Performance fee (Note &)
Investment manxgement fee (MNote &)
Brokerage commission expense
Professional fee

Administration fee (Note &)

Trustee fee (Note 6)

Mamager fee (Note 6)

Custody fee (Note 6

Cither expenses

Total operating expenees
Operating income/{loss)

Finance costs
Distributions to Unitholder (Mote Ty

Met Increase/{decrease) in net assels resulting from operations
atiributable to Unithold er

The accompanving notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.

S5,
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“Year ended Year ended
30 MNovember A0 Movernber
2021 207200
3 18,087 317,701
2,626,203 (2.041,171)
2,644,300 (1,773,470
410801 5035878
204843 307,245
TRO080 -
220040 250,264
06,462 104,942
92,583 112,171
89000 89,245
20490 20,448
14,981 15042
38% T.543
80,100 60,088
1,605,295 1,630,966
1 038005 (34244360
(193500 (362
i 1,01 9655 (3 A60,878)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDER

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

(Expreseed in United States dollars)

“ear ended Year ended
30 November A0 Movernber
2021 20120

MNel assels attributable lo Unitholder
Balance at begmmning of vear 3 AT #6078 3 47495275
Subscriptions during the year (Note 8) 130,391 5,778,559
Fedemptions during the year (Note 8 {17 460,62T) (12,366,878)
Mt increasci{decrease) in et assets from operations

atinbutable to Unitholder during the year 1019655 {3 460,878
Balance at end of year 5 21135497 % 37446078

The accompanving notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.

.
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: - AS : I I
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Year ended Year ended
30 MNovemnber A0 Movernber
2021 20120
Cash Nows from operating activities
Met increaseqdecrease) in net assets resulting from operations
attnibutable to Unitholder 5 1019655 % (3 A0 BTEY
Adjusted for:
Interest income (18097 (317,700
Drarabuition to Unitholder 19350 36442
1,020,908 (3,742,137
Net decrease in financial assets at fair vabhue through
prodit or loss 12057611 BAGH 36
et decrease in margin accoamts 2572781 408,087
et decrense in other assds 1,308 -
et (decreaze)increase in fmancial liabilities at fair value through
predit o loss (1.622.665) 119,645
MNel (decrease) in due to broker - (537372
Net (decrease) in other payables (43.332) (30,852)
et cash provided by operations 13,986,591 4873717
Interest received 18087 317,701
Met cash provided by operating activities 14,004,658 5101418
Cash Mows from fnancing activities
Proceeds from subscriptions from Unitholder 3,034,554 6493 559
Redemptions paid te Unitholder (17.460,627) (12.592,8300
Distributions pawd to Unithobder (19,3500 {36,442)
Met cash (used in) nancing activities (144454230 (6,135 713
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (440,735 (944, 205y
(ash and cash equivalents o beginning of year 1,322.801 1267186
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 BRI156 % 1,322,891

The accompanving notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.

aTm
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 MOVEMBER 2021

1. Owrganization

DIAM Covman Trust (the “Trust™) 15 an exempted unit trust establizhed under the laws of the Cayman Islands
pursipant to declaration of trust (the “Treet Deed™) dated 29 June 2011, DIAM Caryman Trust - Aspect Managed
Futwres Fund dthe “Class Fund™) commenced operations on 16 March 2012 The Trust is registercd under the
Cayman Istands Mutual Funds Law with effect from 29 June 2011, The Trust's place of business is 25 Mam Street,
Grorge Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1107, Cayman Izlands. The Trust filed on behalf of the Class Fund a securities
registration statement on 3 February 2012 pursuant to the Financial Instrument Exchange Law with the Director of
the Kanto Local Finance Barean and a registration stalement pursuant to the Investment Trust Law with the
Comimiszioner of the Financial Services Agency,

The Class Fund 15 2 series trust of the Trust. The investment objective of the Class Fund is to generate medum-term
capital growth independent of overall movements in traditional stock and bond markets within a fgorous nisk
management framework. The Sub-Investment Manager (Note &) applies a fully svstematic and broadly diversified
global trading system, which deploys multiple sirstegies that, primarily through the wse of derivatives, seck to
identify and exploit directional moves in market behavior of a broad range of financial instruments and other assets
including (but not limited to) equities, equity indices, debt securities (inclueding bonds), cwrrencies, interest rates and
comenodities (including energy, metal and agriculural commodities).

2. Significant accounting policies

The principal accountmg policies applied in the preparation of these fmancial statements are set out below, These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, umless oltherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Class Fund have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (JFRS) a2 izsued by the Intermatienal Standards Bosrd  The fmancial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, a8 maxdified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilties
(including dermvative financial instruments) ab Gair value through profit or loss,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It alzo requires the Trusiee to exercise ils judgment in the process of applving the Class Fund's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where agsumplions
and estiates are significant 1o the financial staterments are disclosed in Notes 2, @ and 10,

All references to net assels throughout this decument refer fo net asseis attributable to the holder of Participatmg
Units umless otherwize stated.  Net assets per unit information for each class of Participating Units a3 disclosed in
Nolte 8 has been determined as tolal assets less total liabilities for each class, divided by the number of outstanding
units of each class of Particpating Units,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

2. Significand accounti alicies {continued

Basis of preparation {continued)

fed Sterwkerds crd anerndme nts bo existing soanderds effective § December 2020

There are no other standards, amendments o standards or mterpretations that are effective for annual periods

begimming on 1 Decamber 2002040 that have a material effect on the financial satements of the Class Fumdd.

b New stondards, mmendments and interprelations issued bt noi effeciive jor the finoncial period beginming
§ December 2020 and ot earfv adopted

A mumber of new standards, amendments 1o standards and mterpretations are effective for annual periods beginming

after 1| December 2020, and have not been applied in preparing these financial ststements. Mone of these are

expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.

The signficant accounting policies of the Class Fund, which have been consistently applied 1o all periods presented
{unless otherwise stated), are as follows:

fa Classification

The Class Fund classifies its investments in debt securities and derivatives at fair value through profit or loss, The
Clags Fund classifies its investments based on both the Clags Fund's business model for managing those Anancial
assels and the contractual cash flow characienstics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is
managed, and performunce is evaluated on a fair value basis, The Class Fund s primarily focused on fair value
information and wses that infeemation to assess the assets” performance and to make decisions. The contractual cash
flows of the Class Fund's debt securities are solely principal and mterest, however, these securities are neither held
for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale,
The collection of contractual cash flows is onby incidental to achieving the Clazs Fund's business model’s objective,

Dierivative contracts that have a positive or negative fair vatue are presented as financial assets or financial liabilities
al fair value through profit or boss, respectively.

As auch, the Class Fund classifies all of its investinent pertfolio as financial ssets o liabilities at fair value through
profit or lozs, The Class Fund's obligation conceming nel a=sets attributable 1o Unitholder 15 reconded at the
redemnable amouits, which approximates far valuve. All other Nnancial ssets and Labilities are ¢lassified as and
measured al amortized cost
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

2, Slmnificand accounti alicies {contimied

Firmmncial assets and Hahilities at fir value through profit or loss {oontimied)
i Recognition derecognition and mearrement

Regular purchaszes and sales of investiments are recognized on the trade date - the date oh which the Class Fund
comumnits 1o purchase or sell the nvestment. Fmancial assets and financial habilites at fair value through profit or
loes are putially recogmized &l fair value Transscbon cosls are expensed as meumed m the Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

Financial assels are derecognized whem the nghts to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the
Clags Fumdl has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership,

Subsequent to initial recognition, all fimancial azsetz and financial liabilities at Cair value through prafit or boss are
measured ai Fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial aszets or financial
liabilaties a1 fair value throsgh profit or loss” category are presented in the Statemnent of Comprehensive Income
within net changes in fair value of financial assets and liabilities at far value through profit or loss in the period in
which they arse.

feb  Failr velier estimetion

Securities for which there 15 an active market are valued at fair value, by reference to bid prices queted on the
exchange upon which such securities are traded or prices quoted by the principal market makers for non-exchange
traded investmems.

The Class Fund enters mito derivative contracts comprising forward curmrency contracts and fitures contracts. These
dervative contracts are carried at their fair value in the Statement of Financial Position and the resulting realized
and wnrealized gains or losses are ncluded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fair value is generally
based on queted market prices or broker or dealer price quotations. The fair value of over the counter derivatives is
determined based on valuation pricing medels which take info account relevant cusrent markel inputs for mterest
rafes, currencies, equitics sl comemodities a3 well a8 time values, liquidity and volatility factors underlving the
positions,

Collateral: Cash collateral provided by the Class Fund is identified in the Statement of Financizl Position as margin
accounts and 15 not included a5 a compronent of cash and cash equivalemts. Margin accounds represent margin
deposits held i respect of open exchange-traded fistures contracts and forward curmrency exchange contracts.

“10-

110/229



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

2, Slmnificand accounti alicies {contimied

Cash and cush equivalents: Cash amd cash equivalents inchede all cazh on demand snd on shont notice and all
depositz with origim] terms o maturity of not more tham 3 months.  All of the Class Fund's cash and cash
equivalent balace as at 30 November 2021 15 mamtained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Note 9.

Due fronyio brokers: Amoamits due from brokers represent asmounits receivable from brokers arising from unsettled
dervative transactions with brokers. Amounts due to brokers represent amounts payable to brokers ansing from
unseliled derivative trmsactions with brokers.

Offseiting fnandal instruments: Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net ameount reported in the
Seaterment of Financial Position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention o settle on a net basis or realize the asset and seftle the liability simultanecusly.

Expenses: Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Interest income and inferest from fnancial assels i Caic value through profit or loss: Interest income is

recognized on an accruals basis using the effective interest method. Interest meome mcludes nterest from cash and
cash equivalents and margm cash. Interest from fmancial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes interest
from debt securilies,

Income taxes: Under the curvent laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cavoean Island taxes payable by the Class Fund. As a resull, no provision for mcome taces bas been made in the
financial statements, Interest income eamed by the Class Fund is generally subject to foreign withholding tac at
source.  Withtholding taxes on interest is shown as a separate line item i the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Class Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are vinually all demiciled in countries other than the
Cavinan Islands. Marey of these foreign countries have tax laws which swicate that capital gains taxes may be
applicable 1o non-residents, such as the Class Fund, Typically, theze capilal gains taxes are required (o be
determimed on a sell-assesanent basis and, therefore, such tisies may nol be deducted by the Class Fund®s brokers
on a “withholding” basis.

At 30 Movember 2021, the Class Fund has measured its tax liabilities with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at
niil (30 Movernber 2020: nil).

Distributions: Distnbutions to the Unitholder are classified a5 other expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (MNote 7).

Foreign exchange transactions:  Assets and Liabilities denominated n cumencics other than the Umnted States
Dollar C*USD™ ) are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valustion. Foreign cumency income
and expenditure items are converted at the rate of exchange on the date of the tomsaction. Gams and losses on
foreign currencics are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they anise.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and labilities carried 8t fair value through profit or
lows are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within *net changes i fair value on financial assets
and financial liabilities at fur value through profit or loss'.

=1]=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

2, Slmnificand accounti alicies {contimied

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Functional and presentation corrency:  [ems included in the Class Fund®s financial satements are measured
using the currency of the primary economic enviromment in which it operates (the “functional currency™), the USD.
The majonty of mvestments are denorminated in USD and a portion of the Class Fund's subscniptions and
redemptions are transacted m USD. In addition, the Class Fund has adopted the USD 2= its presentation curmmency.

: The Class Fund izsues three class units {Note 8) which are redesmable at the holder's option
and do not have identical rights. Such Participating Units are classified as financial liabilities. The Participating
Units can be put back to the Class Fusid by the holder on any business dav for cash equal o a propomionate share of
the Class Fund's net assetz.  The Participating Units are carried at the redemption amount ithat iz payable at the
Staternent of Financial Position date if the Unitholder exercised their right to put the umit back 1o the Class Fund,

n gaels anid vy
30 Movember 30 November
2021 2020
Financial assets held Tor trading:

U.S, Treasury Bills 3 10956485 S 20,801,616

Derivative contracts 2,841,708 5,054,189
Total Minancial assets held for trading 5 13,798,194 5 25 RESROE
Finamcial liabilities held For trading:

Dermvative contracts 3 (3072031 8 (4,65 696K
Todal financial lisbilities held for trading 3 (3072031} 5 {4, 644, 69 6)
et changes in fair value on financial assets and liabilities at fair

value threugh profit or loss;
Pertod from Period from
1 December 2020 1 December 201%
to 30 Novemnber to 30 November
2021 2020

Realized 5 3248177 3 (2178.188)

Change in unrealized (621,974 87017
Total gains/{losses) 5 2626203 5 (2,001,171
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

3. Financial assets and liabilities at fair valoe throw rofit or loss {contimed

AL 30 MNovember 2021 fimancial assets 8 fur value through profit or less are comprised of:

Fair Yool net
vitlue Assets
Investmenis in United States Treasury securities
LLE, Treasury Bills 5 10956, 486 5184 %
Total investments in United States Treasury securities 5 10,956,456 5184 %o
Derivative contracis
Forward contracts 5 2155,141 1020 %o
Fulures contracts OR6,567 125 %
Toial derbvative coniracis 5 2.841,70% 1345 %
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss k3 13,798,194 6520 %o
At 30 Nevember 2021 financial liabilities at fair value threugh profit or less are comprised of:
Fair o5 of net
value Assels
Derivative contracls
Forward contracts 5 (1,497 530) (T8 %%
Futures contracts (1,574,501) {7.45) %
Total derivative contracis 5 {3,072,031) {14.54) %

Todal financial liabilities at Fair vahie through profit or loss 5 (3,072,031) (14.54) "

“13-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

3. Financial assets and liabilities at fair valoe throw rofit or loss {contimed

At 30 MNovember 2020 fimancial assets 8 faar value through profit or loss are comprised of:

Fair %o of net
vilue assels
Investments in United States Trensury securities
U5, Treasury Bills 2 20,801,616 3555 %
Total investments in United States Treasury securities 5 20,801,616 SEEE Op
Deerivative contracts
Forward contracts 5 2,320 658 622 %
Futures contracts 2734 531 128 %%
Total derbvative contracts -3 5,054,189 13500 %
Total Mnanclal assets at falr value through profit or loss 3 15855 805 G905 %o
At 30 November 2020 financial liabilitiez at fair value through profit or loss are comprised of:
Fair 2 of net
value assels
Drerivative contracls
Forward contracts g {2,403 480 {647 %
Futures contracts (2, 291.207) (612 %
Todal derivative coniracts 5 (4,694, 6816) (12.54) %
Total financial liabilities at Fair valze through profil or loss s (4.654.606) (12.54) "

-14-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENII;D 3 NOVEMBER 2021

4, Derivative Mnancial insiruments

In the nomal course of busmess, the Class Fund may trade varous fnancial instrunrents and enter into varicus
investment activities with off-balance sheet nsk. These financial instruments include futures and forward curency
comtracts. Fulures contracts are exchange raded wiile forward currency contracts are contractual ammangements with
preapproved comlerparties.

Futures and forward cumency contracts provide for the delayved delivery of securities, commodities, curmencies or
other financial instruments with the coumterparty agreeing to make or take delivery at a specified futre date, at a
specified price or yield, Market and credit risk arize related to these contracts, A transactions in fulures require
participants to make both initial margin deposits and variation margin deposits directly with the exchange on which
the contracts are traded, credit exposure with counterparties is limited.

The Class Fund is required to maintain collateral in their fitures and forward cumency contracl margin acc ounts.
Amoumts deposited as margin are restricted in terms of use and marketability. This ameant is closely momitored by
the Class Fumnd,

The Class Fund holds the following derivative instruments:

ferd  Fuires

Futures are contraciual obligations to buy or sell financial instuments on a future date at a specified price
established in an organized market, The future contracts are collateralized by cash or marketable securitics; changes
in the futures contracis” valee are setiled daily with the exchange. Futures are sefiled on a net basis.

At 30 Movember 2021, the Class Fund held the following concentrations in exchange traced firtures:

et Notional Fair Value
Futures contracts, at fair value, net
Currencies s (1,120,605 & 15,505
Energy 3003474 (194,843
Fmancials (26,893,030) (34H,43)
Giraing 282217 {30,213)
Irudlex 13,038,302 (389 354)
Loguclon Metals 1692314 100,330
Materials B32380 (34.305)
Meats 631,648 (6,068
Metals (13 .045) (5.043)
Total Mutures contracts, at Gir value, net -3 (59164581} 5 (EE7.934)

-1%5-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

4. Derivative lnancial instruments {continued)
At 30 MNovember 2020, the Class Fund held the following concemrations in exchange traded fitures:

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Met Notional Fair Value
Fuituires contracts, at fair value, net
Currencies -7 1.244324 3% 14,7446
Energy (3,516,720 (06,893)
Fmancials 373825417 (35.923)
Grains 10179 226 315,3W0
Irncless 6465875 38960
Loasclon Metals G601 98 191,630
Materialz 1,226,350 15,950
Mleats (1,911, 508) (77,880
Metals 5. 140,091 67,344
Total Tutures contracts, at Gar value, net 5 402,261,366 = 433,324

B Forward comtracis

“The following s a summary of open forward currency contracts at 30 November 2021:

AUD Class Specific
Bary USD 46,391 and Sell AUD 64,207 30 December 2021 5

JPY Class Specific
Buy JPY 2,069 385 868 and Sell USD 18,035,250 30 December 2021

Class Fund Specific
Buy BEL 712,518 and Sell USD 125,000 15 December 2021
Bary CHF 4,578,828 and Sell ELE 4,300,000 15 December 2021
By CHF 553,801 and Sell USD 600,000 15 December 2021
Bagy CLP 41,79, 280 and Sell LESD 0,000 15 December 2021
By CMH 28,557,029 and Sell USD 4,400,000 15 December 2021
Buv CZK 1,276,708 and Sell ELIR 50,000 15 Decamber 2021
Bany ELTR 100,000 and Sell SD 113,232 15 December 2021
Bury EUR 2,150,000 and Sell NOK 21,315,127 15 December 2021
Buy ELR 2,300,000 and Scll HUF 824,780,445 15 December 2021
Bay EUR 550,000 and Sell CZK 1397274 1.5 December 2021
Buy EUR 6,300,000 mnd Sell SEK 63,752,320 15 December 2021
By ELTR. 800,000 and Sell GBP 676,903 15 December 2021
Bay EUR 975,000 and Sell PLN 4.468 646 15 December 2021
Buy GBP 2,084, 19 and Sell EUR 2,425,000 15 December 2021
Bagy HUF 230,483,345 and Sell EUR 600,000 15 December 2021

-16-
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Mlaturity Date

Ui ealized Gain

635

275,136

115450
3170
430

T 48
23

59
HLEIZ
43.571
1898
14,432
7,131
19,842
21,335
5171



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

4. Derivative lnancial instruments {continued)

Class Fund Specific
By DR, 10,803,245.073 and Sell USD 750,000
By ILS 5,765.976 and Sell USD 1,800,000
Buy INE 77,308,320 and Sell USD 1,025,000
Buy JFY 130,238,701 and Sell BUR, 1,000,000
Buy JPY 148,044,751 and Sell USD 1,300,000
Bary KRW 119,316,968 and Sell USD 100,000
Buy MOK 17,539,962 and Sell EUR 1,700,000
Buy PEN 1,644,914 and Sell USD 400,000
By PHP 45,838,073 and Sell USD 900,000
Buy PLN 116,705 and Sell EUR 25,000
Buy THE 5,067, 7% and Sell USD 150,000
Buy TWD 41,948,213 and Sell LISD 1,500,000
By USD 1,025,000 and Sell ILS 3,184,615
Buy USD 1,075,000 and Sell BRL 5,938,490
Buy USD 1,200,000 and Sell CLP 972,763,810
By UISD 1,575,000 and Sell MXN 32,884,276
Buy USD 1,925 000 and Sell KRW 2,273 065435
Buy USD 2,200,000 and Sell COP 403,675,138
By USD 2,325,000 and Sell 5GD 3,142,338
By USIx 2,600,000 and Sell CHF 2,371,860
By USD 3,200,000 and Sell THB 104,613,750
Buy USD 3,600,000 and Sell JPY 396,840,477
Buy USD 3,762,267 and Sell NZD 5,350,000
By USD 300,000 and Sell RUB 21,734,443
Bury USD 4,600,000 and Sell CAD 5,797,358
By LSOy 4,800,000 and Sell TWD 132,625,971
By LISy 430,000 and Sell PEN 1,806,159
Fary USD 450,000 and Sell PHP 22,627,808
By USID 5,558,785 and Sell GBP 4,100,000
Buy USD 5,875,982 and Sell AUD 8 000,000
Buy USD 750,000 and Sell IDR 10,708,208 928
By USD 750,000 and Sell INR 55,996,455
Buy USD 8,016,948 and Sell EUR & 800,000
By USDy 900,000 and Sell ZAR 13,726,753
Buy ZAR 806,81 7 and Sell USD 50,000
Buy JPY 44,846,085 and Sell EUR 350,00
Buy USDy 350,000 and Sell TDR 5,070,660,000

sy
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Maturity Date

15 Deceamber 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Drec emboer 2021
15 Deeg eamiber 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Deceamber 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decamber 2021
15 Decamber 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Deec ember 2021
15 December 2021
15 Drecember 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decamber 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Drec embeer 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Deceamber 2021
15 Decanber 2021
15 December 2021
16 March 2022
16 March 2022

Unrealized Gain

3,065
26816
2.207
18507
0, 20
585
8,617
4,060
BasS

7

409
8,603
16,020
24872
26,380
47,214
8 707
100,227
24,336
16,609
05,135
91, 380
113,603
8.579
64,503
30,311
6,280
1.347
112,347
179,248
3,608
5873
313,150
A0, 506
52
419
114
2125141
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

4. Derivative lnancial instruments {continued)

Unrealized
Maturlty Date {Laoss)
AUD Class Specific
Buy ALD 857,088 and Sell USD 621,133 30 Degember 2021 (10612
JPY Class Spediic
Buy USD 6,671 and Sell JFY 766,714 30 December 2021 (112
Class Fund Specilic
Bary ALY 3,200,000 and Sell USD 2,383 348 15 December 2021 (104.654)
Buy BEL 5,708,634 and Sell USD 1,075,000 15 December 2021 (63.519)
Biry CAD 2,238,572 and Sell USDy 1,800, (00 15 December 2021 (48.714)
Buy CHF 365,511 and Sell USD 400,000 15 December 2021 {1.5405)
By CLP 2,208.856,280 and Sell USD 2,800,000 15 December 2021 (135.079)
Biy COP 3,430,293, 850 and Sell USD 900,000 15 December 2021 (LB
Buy CZK 43,314,074 and Sell EUR 1,700,000 15 December 2021 (3381
By EUR. 1,000,000 and Sell JPY 130,062,508 15 December 2021 (17.350)
Buy ELUR 150,000 and Sell NOK 1,543,376 15 December 2021 £2001)
By FUR 175,000 and Sell PLX 821,756 15 December 2021 (1.21%)
Buy BUR 2,500,000 and Sell USD 2,915,103 15 December 2021 (B2E8M)
By EUR 200,000 and Sell SEK 2,051,548 15 December 2021 {702y
Bary ELR 400,000 and Sell GBP 342,660 15 December 2021 {2.025)
By ELUTR 6000000 and Sell CHF &44,154 15 December 2021 (21,830)
Buy BUR 900,000 and Sell CZK 23,074,116 15 Detemiber 2021 4,563)
Buy GBP 1,700,000 and Sell USD 2,342,108 15 December 2021 (83,810
Buy GBP 2.645. 700 and Sell EUR 3,123,000 15 December 2021 (25.671)
Fary HUF 1,227,926,075 and Sell EUR 3,500,000 15 December 2021 (150,719}
Buy IDR 7,168.384,415 and Sell USD 500,000 15 December 2021 273)
By INR 143,317,004 and Sell USD 1,925 000 15 December 2021 (20.48%)
Buy JFY 88 161,290 and Sell USD 800, 000 15 December 2021 (20.310)
By KEW 931,704,341 and Sell USD 800,000 15 December 2021 (14, 569)
By MXN 41,596 460 and Sell USD 2,050,000 15 December 2021 (117,450)
Buy MOK 17,653,205 and Sell EUR 1,750,000 15 December 2021 (35.538)
Buy NZD 6,600,000 and Sell USD 4,693,203 15 December 2021 (192.060)
Bary PEN 401,628 and Sell USD 100,040 15 December 2021 (1.334)
Buy PHP 5,037,124 and Sell USD 100,000 15 December 2021 (126)
By PLN 15748402 and Sell EUR 3,425,000 15 Drecember 2021 (37.358)
Fary RUB 170,631,772 and Sell USD 2,300,000 15 December 2021 (12.121)
Buy SEK 17,055,205 and Sell EUR 1,700,000 15 December 2021 (36.450)
Buy 8GD 1,346,052 and Sell USD 1,000,000 15 Deecemiber 2021 (14.488)
Fary THE 43, 203 282 and Sell USD 1, 300,000 15 Decomber 2021 (17.735)
Bary TWID 29,083,862 and Sell USD 1,050,000 15 December 2021 {4,044
Buy USD 1,325,000 md Sell KRW 1,579,078,577 15 Drec emibeer 2021 (6,1 70
15 December 2021 (15,284)

By LISD 1,700,000 and Sell JPY 193 950,898

S1%-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

4. Derivative lnancial instruments {continued)

Unirealized
Maturltv Date {Loss)
Class Fund Specilic
By USD 100,000 and Sell COP 402,030,850 15 Decomber 2021 § (153)
Buy USD 100,000 and Sell RUB 7,597,003 15 December 2021 (1.8463)
Bary USD 100,000 and Sell THIZ 3,384,768 15 December 2021 (458)
Buy USD 2,750,000 and Sell CNH 17,680,064 15 December 2021 (23.476)
Bare USD 200,000 and Sell CAD 256,281 15 Decamber 2021 {494)
Buy USD 25,000 and Scll BRL 141,411 15 Decamber 2021 (6)
Buy USD 275,000 and Sell SGD 376,353 15 Deec ember 2021 (54T
Buy USD 3,100,000 and Sell CHF 2,875,645 15 December 2021 (31.995)
Bary UST 350,000 and Sell PEN 1,444,051 15 December 2021 (4.754)
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell PHP 17,758,400 15 December 2021 {2.125)
Bary USD 350,000 and Sell TWI 9,734 308 15 December 2021 (79)
Buy USD 374,394 and Sell NZD 550,000 15 December 2021 {702)
Bary USD 400, 0000 and Sell CLP 335 856835 15 December 2021 (5,202)
Buy USD 50,000 and Sell INR 3,763,306 15 December 2021 (113
By USD 50,000 s Sell ZAR 808,781 15 December 2021 (635)
Buy USD 505,034 and Sell IDR 7.265.130,581 15 Drec emiber 2021 (1,340)
Buy USD 575,000 and Sell MM 12,514,640 15 Decemnber 2021 (6.424)
By USD 70,885 amd Sell AU 100, (6 15 December 2021 {3x)
Bary USD 775,000 and Sell ILS 2.480,531 15 December 2021 (10,899)
Bary USD 900,278 and Sell EUR 800,000 15 December 2021 13.051)
Buy ZAR 5,894,380 and Sell LS 400,000 15 December 2021 (30.970)
g {1,497, 5300

The followmg 15 a sumimary of open Forward currency contracts a1 30 Novenber 2020:

Maturity Date

Unrealized Gain

AUD Class Spedfic
Buy AUD 796,822 and Scll USD 583,208 30 December 2020 5 2 942

Class Fund Specific
Buy CHF 5,575,764 and Sell USD 6,100,000 16 Dec ember 2020 54,347
Buy CHH 45,375,500 and Sell USD 6,600,000 16 December 2020 280272
Buy EUR 2,600,000 and Sell CHF 2,807,251 16 December 2020 8974
Buy EUR 1,800,000 and Sell HUF 645,514,818 16 December 2020 2807
Buy EUR 950,000 and Sell JEY 117,890,072 16 Dec ember 2020 5,181
By EUR 1900000 and Sell PLM 8 469,611 16 December 2020 11,328
Buy EUR 900,000 and Sell SEK 9,154,219 16 Decanber 2020 5,056
Buy EUR 8,300,000 and Sell USD 9,808, 620 16 Dhec emmibver 2020 111,549
Buy GBP 4,400,000 and Sell USD 5,739,495 16 Dt emnber 2020 133,587
Buy HUF 543 495,099 and Sell EUR 1, 300,040 16 December 2020 Lo, 185
Buy IDR 11,298 348 973 and Sell USD 764,607 16 Deecemiber 2020 31,792

S 19-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

4. Derivative lnancial instruments {continued)

Class Fund Specific
Buy INR 48,325,631 and Scll USD 650,000
Buy IFY 56,430,803 apd Sell EUR 450,000
Buy JPY 747,530,945 and Sell USD 7,100,000
Buy NOK 29,192,822 and Sell EUR 2,700,000
Buy PEN 1,086,241 and Sell USD 304,000
Buy PHP 131,794,026 and Sell USD 2,700,000
Buy PLN 4,278,032 and Sell EUR 950,000
Buy RUB 53,991 %48 and Sell USDY 704,000
Buy SEK 75,640,678 and Sell EUR 7,300,000
Bury G0 3,664,442 and Sell USD 2, 7040, 000
Buy THE 82,294,103 and Sell USD 2,650,000
Buy TWD 18,756,061 and Sell USD 650,000
Buy USD 300,000 and Scll CNH 1 974,653
Buy USD 50,000 and Sell IDE 705,973,529
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell INE. 25,868,858
Buy USD 300,000 and Sell JPY 31,234,797
Buy USD 3475,000 and Sell PEN 12,378,089
Buy USD 1.250,000 and Sell RUB 94,797,655
Buy USD 2,523,000 and Sl TWD 71,584,023
Buy AUD 12,000,000 and Sell USD 8,697,537
Buy BRL 2,704,117 and Sell USD 500,000
Buy CAD 7,735,605 and Sell USD 5,900,000
Buy CLF 1 412,664,443 and Sell USD 1,825,000
Buy COP 3,330,881,163 and Sell USD 900,000
Buy CZK 63,960,010 and Sell EUR. 400,000
Buy EUR 50,000 and Sell CZK 1.310.921
Buy EUR 100,000 and Sell GBP 89,387
Buy GBP 2625627 and Sell EUR. 2,500, (0
Buy ILS 13,191,457 and Sell USD 39040, 004
Buy KRW 6,677,507,848 and Sell USD 5,800,000
Buy MXMN 36,506,325 and Sell USD 1,700,000
Buy NZD 10,700,000 and Sell USD 7,214,603
Buy USD 1,650,000 and Sell BRL 8 724,419
Buy USD 130,000 and Sell CLP 114,012,725
Buy USD 330,000 and Sell KRW 387,413,728
Buy USD 50,0400 and Sell MM 1,005,790
Buy ZAR 22,955 210 and Sell USD 1,400,000
Buy EUR 130,000 and Sell JPY 18,646,376
Buy GBP 300,000 and Sell USD 400,221
Buy USD 50,0400 and Sell [DE 712,150,000

e 1 1
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Maturity Date

16 Dhec eimber 2020
16 December 2020
16 December 2020
16 Dec amber 2020
16 December 2020
16 December 2020
16 Decamber 2020
16 Deceamber 2020
16 Decemiber 2020
16 Decamber 2020
16 Drec ember 2020
16 December 2020
16 December 2020
16 Dec ember 2020
16 Decanber 2020
16 Decamber 2020
16 December 2020
16 Decamber 2020
16 December 2020
16 Decamber 2020
16 Dwec ember 20240
165 Deecembver 2020
16 Dhec emiber 20240
16 Deceamber 2020
16 December 20240
16 Decamber 2020
16 Deceamber 2020
16 December 2020
16 Decamber 2020
16 Decamber 2020
16 D emiber 2020
16 December 2020
16 December 2020
16 Drecember 2020
16 Deceamber 2020
16 December 2020
17 Decamber 2020
17 March 2021
17 March 2021
17 March 2021

Unrealized Gain

3 2083
319
G, 590
&4, 740
1,193
37,885
5808
6,114
121,533
35,0M
173
7,245
192
232

b b
339
42,908
10,213
16,572
128,103
5474
67,839
30,045
25,622
41,772
112
207
38577
90,150
225,613
108,045
208, 104
19,164
I8
524
186
83,877
668
515
168

] 2,329,658
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

4. Derivative linancial instruments {continued)

JPY Class Spedfic
Buy JPY 2,783,973,262 and Scll USD 26,861,260

Class Fund Specific
Buy CHF 2,361,971 and Sell ELTR 2,200,000
Buy CHF 1,537,090 and Sell USD 1,700,000
Buy CMNH 3,289,138 and Sell USD S0:0,0:00
Buy EUR. 100,000 ard Sell CHF 108,404
Buy EUR 2,000,000 and Sell HUF 723,079, 564
Buy EUR 3,250,000 and Scll JPY 407,073,250
Buy EUR 5,200,000 and Sell NOK 56,310,039
By EUTR 1,800,000 and Sell PLN 8 166475
Buy EUR 2,400,000 and Sell SEK 25,144,764
Buy BEUR 200,000 and Sell USD 239,477
By HUF 285,444, 556 and Sell EUR 800,000
Buy IDR 2,830,322.636 and Sell USD 200,000
Buy INE 169,877,991 and Sell USD 2,300,000
By JPY 461,611,100 and Sell EUR 3,750,000
Buy JPY 270,205,483 and Sell USD 2,600,000
Buy NOK 8,451,575 and Sell EUR 800, 000
Buy PEN 2,851,097 and Sell USD 800,000
Buy FLM 1,340,615 and Sell EUR 300,000
By RUB 18,933,613 and Sell USD 250,000
Buy SEK 8,142,805 and Sell ELR 800,000
By SGI 133,721 and Sell USD 100,000
Bury THE 13,581,980 and Sell USD 430,000
Buy TWI 38,351,900 and Sell USD 1,350,000
Buy USD 5,100,000 and Sell CHF 4,674,156
Buy USD 1,950,000 and Scll CWH 13,049,268
Buy USI 6,585,537 and Scll EUR 5,600,000
Bary USD 5,692,492 and Sell GBP 4,400,000
Buy USD 900,000 and Sell IDR 13,422 608,024
By USI 1,000,000 and Sell INR. 74,658,331
Bury USD 3 000,000 and Sell JPY 315 430,916
Buy USD 275,000 and Sell PEN 993 426
By USDx 2,050,000 and Sell PHP 9,368,506
By USDx 950,000 and Sell RUB 74687187
By USDy 1 800,000 and Sell 3GD 2,459,575
By USD 1,400,000 and Sell THE 44,125,517
Buy USD 4,375,000 and Scll TWD 126,458, 746
Buy AUD 400,000 and Sell USD 296,048

=2 -
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Unirealized
Maturlty Date {Loss)
30 December 2020 (158,109
16 December 2020 (22.378)
14 December 2000 (3.411)
16 Decemnber 2020 { ey
16 December 20040 (133)
16 Decemnber 20040 (16,323)
16 December 200240 (18,373)
16 December 2020 (134,475)
16 December 20040 (27.321)
16 December 2020 (72,305)
16 December 20720 {436)
16 Decamber 20:20 {(&.077)
16 December 2020 (474)
14 December 2000 (7.713)
16 December 2020 (36,351)
16 December 2020 (9.428)
14 Decemnber 20040 (3,161)
16 December 2020 (9.472)
16 December 20020 {55
16 December 20040 2.384)
16 December 200240 (3.825)
16 December 2020 {193)
16 Decemnber 20720 (1.057)
16 December 2020 (6,083)
16 December 20020 (39,181)
14 December 2020 (31,244)
16 December 20040 (107, 595)
16 December 20040 (180,500)
16 Decemnber 20020 (46,247)
16 December 2020 (7,419)
16 December 20040 (24,167)
16 December 2020 (449)
16 December 2020 (14,278)
14 December 2020 {26, Ta)
16 D amber 20240 (35,781)
16 Decemnber 20040 (58,538)
16 December 2020 (56,332)
16 December 20020 (1,860)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

4. Derivative linancial instruments {continued)

Class Fund Specific
Buy BRL 1,581,722 and Sell USDy 300,000
Bury CAIDD 258,212 and Scll USD 200,000
Bary CLP 346,655,550 and Sell USD 725,000
Buy CZK 9,156,738 and Sell EUR 350,000
Buy EUR 3,400,000 and Sell CZK 91,146,542
Buy EUR 4,500,000 and Sell GBP 4,111,982
Buy GBP 668,065 and Sell ELTR 750,000
Buy KRW 276,053,675 and Sell USD 250,000
Bagy MO 5028110 and Sell FSD 250,000
Bay NZD 700,000 and Sell USD 492,285
Buey UISD 8322 847 and Sell AU 7, 5060, 000
Bury USD 1,150,000 and Sell BRL 6,410,442
Bary USD 4,200,000 and Sell CAD 5,544,108
Bury USD 1,550,000 and Sell CLP 1,216,257,625
By USD 1,800,000 and Sell COP 6,889 850,713
Buy USD 2,600,000 and Secll [LS 8,909,660
Bagy USD 2,500,000 and Sell KRW 2,956,547 895
Bagy USD 700,000 and Sell MEN 15,523 565
By USD 2,104,929 and Sell NZD 3,200,000
Bagy USD 200,000 and Sell ZAR 3346215
Buy ZAR 13,072,084 and Sell USD 850,000
Bery IDR. 1,429,1 00,000 and Sell LIS 100,000
Bury JTEY 24,686,876 and Sell ELTR 200,000
Bay TSI 266,711 and Sell GBP 200,000

=32
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Unirealized
Maturlty Date {Loss)
16 December 2020 g (4.332)
16 December 2020 {257
16 December 207240 (T.156)
16 December 2020 (1.678)
16 December 2020 (23,500
16 December 20720 (100.228)
16 December 2020 (4.674)
16 December 2020 {979)
16 December 2020 {974y
14 December 2020 (74RTy
16 December 2020 (193,178}
146 December 2020 (48,289
16 December 2020 (77.101)
16 December 2020 (47.136)
16 December 20240 (1146300
16 December 2020 (94,993)
16 December 20040 (16T, 028)
16 December 2020 (68.83)
16 Decamber 2020 (141,862)
17 December 2020 (16,307)
17 December 2020 (4,500
17 March 2021 -
17 March 2021 (2.571)
17 March 2021 {447
g (2,403, 48%)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

S, CHTseiting Mnancial assets and liabilities

A ol 30 Novemnber 2021 and 30 Novernber 2020, no financial instruments of the Class Fund are bemg presented net
within the statement of financial position (See Note 3 for gross amounts). The following tables provide mfommation
on the financial impact of netting for instraments subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement of similar
agreement in the event of default az defimed under such agreements,

“The following tables summanze the gross smd net finaneial assets and habibties per counterpaty @ af 30 November 2021:

OMTeetting of Finmcal Aveels and Depvative Asiels
Felated fAanounts not set-off in the
Snatemest of Finme o Position

Gross Ameants of Azsets
in the Statement of Finansiad Collateral
D&urlln'“. Comster Party Finaneial Posgdrion T s o s ' Haealved ™ et Anssant™
Foroards Deutsche Bank £ 1,159,033  § BET.HE 5 - & 531,085
Feriiueds Bank of Hew York Mellon rrEt ] (10, 724) - 25X 06T
Forwards Citabank 682,317 (AE23TH .
Futaren Credis Skie LB6.56T (R84 36T - -
Margin Dieutsche Hanle 1,1 E8,65% : - 1115659
Magin Bk of New ¥ ork Mellon I63308T . . 3653097
Magmn Cibank 14637002 (136,541} - 1.520.80
Margin Credy Suikie 3300152 (HET.534) - 2418
Totd 13 12577 mMs & {I0TL 031} & - E 85050957
Ofsetting of Finunciad Linkilities and Derivative Linkiliies
Rl ated A ounts not set. ol in the
Satement of Finoncial Position
i ross Asaeunts of
Liabillities in the
Sranaes st of Finanedal Finansia Callatera
D"trill:iou. Coumter Party I‘bn'h'_.-u. Ty s s ey 2 Hﬁlﬂ“ et Aomsant™
Forwarda Dreutache Bank 1 66708 § BETME 4 - % T
Forumeids Bk of Hew Tork Mello 10,724 {10,724} -
Foruards Cilbank. BEBB52 GE2 31T (U36,541)
fubes Credr Suitie 1,574,501 fi@':-.“'l"j (837 *34!
Torad £ 3072031 8 {2047 556y 8 {1,024475; £

01y Groes pmessis of relped Bnsnend mapesents avielable fop ol fpet bie 2oy setred 1 e Srpement of Famasl Pennog
{2y Grom amoosts of related cash collsteral snd mergin bomrowsng svalabie for offeet but not netted in the Statement of Rnmoad Fenmos

3y Bepoesests thie i ammconts die b6 or Froen She courferpartyt in the enend of defaul) baged on the contrastual et -cf nghis ender he agreememt

R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

S, OHTseiting Mnancial assets and liabilities {(continued)

‘The following tables summarize the gross md net financial aseets and liabilities per counterpany o at 30 November 2020:

OTsetting of Finuncial Asseix and Dervative Asseis
Erlated Amounts mot set-ofl in the
Erntement of Financisl Poition
v Amousdi of Axiets in

the Staiensent of Finmrial Financisl Cellueral
Dhsseription Counter Party Fovition Instruments Fecwved ™" Tt Amsonzt
Forwards Derngche Ranle L 1065007 § fosaesn f - % 105
Formards Eank of Hew Tork Mellon 202 [ b
Forwards Citibanike 1E61 M8 (1161709
Futures Credst Fuisie el b el ony] - 4T33M
Margm Dhesngsie Bonle 153 546 . - 1531 55
Margin Bank of Hew York Mellen 3FIEST (155,167 - ATELGH0
Margn Db ank 151006 1T = 1,545 500
Margn Cyeday Suigie 5258062 c - el
Totd i [r3sazn (40660 & - §|Lagmsu
OfTsecting of Financal Lisbilities and Derivative Liahilities

Eelated Amounts mot wet-ofl in the
Srmternent of Finascisl Peaiton
Grasy Amounts of

Liahilities s the Soatment Financial Collateral
Dese ription Connse Party of Finamrial Position Tnstruments ' Pledged ™! Mt At
Foraards Dreutscbe Bank £ 1058455 £ (HOs s B i
Forwards Bamk of Hew Tork Mellen 13,10 [rd i) {15516T)
Foraards Chithpafic 1,850,285 CL1ELT0 25,17
Futures Credt Suizse 2291 107 2 2T -
Total I 4504606 § 4510350 £ (184343 £

(1} Grom smomnte of related fmanas merammes svslable for offpet tas et nettedin S Stemme of Fmma s Fonbon
(2 Crons amemsty of rebated cosh ool seral oo moepin barsownng srmlable for of fiet bt sl nared i the Siatement of Finenn sl Parnon

{3y Eepresests the net srmounts dus to.or from the counterparty in the event of default based on the contractusl set-off rights onder the sgreement

6. Belated party (ransactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to controd the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making fmancial or operational decisions.

Trustee and Manager

On 29 June 2011, FirstCanbbean Intermational Bank and Trust Company (Cay man) Limited became the Trustee of
the Trust. Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Trustee and Manager have authority and overall responsibility Tor the
Trest*s administration and management, which mclhedes the responsibality for distnibution and redemption of units in
the Trust.  The Trustee and Manager have appointed Bank of New York Mellon (USA) to provide the day -to-day
administration of the Class Fumd. The Trustee is entitled to recemve out of the assets of the Class Fund a fee of 0.01%%
per annum of the net asset vahee subject to a quarterly minimum fee of 53,750 The Trustees fee will be accned daily
and calculated based on the ned asset value as at the immediately preceding Vahation Day (daily ) and payable quarterly
ifh AIVEATS,

Dueensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid. (the “Manager™) entered into the Trust Dead with the Trustee noted

above on 29 June 2011 and entered nto the Supplemental Trest Deed dated 27 January 2012 with the Trustee. The
Mammager prescribes management of the Class Fund's assets and 1ssue and repurchase of the units of the Class Fund.

e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

6, Related transactions {continued

Trustes and Manager (continwed)

“The Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fumd a fee of 0001% per simmam of the net assel value
subyect o a quarterly minmaen fee of 33,750, The Manager's foe will be accrued daly and caloulated based on the net
asset value a5 at the immedistely preceding Valuation Day (daily ) and payable quarterly in armears.

Agent and Distributor

Om 27 January 2012, the Agent Company Agreement was enlered inlo between Cueensgate Bank and Trust
Company, Ltd and Mitsubighi UFJ Morgan Stanbey Securities Co, Ltd (the “Agent™). The Agent Company
Agreement is an agreement pursuant to which the Agemt, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submil
the prospectuses regarding the units of the Clagz Fund to the Japan Securities Dealers’ Aszzociation (“JSDA™),
publicize the net asset value per unit and submit the documents such as the financial statements and ether documents
to thee JSDA. The Agent is entitled to receive a fee of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value attnbutable to such
classes of units of the Class Fund.

Om 27 January 2012, the Units Dastribution and Repurchase Agreement was eniered nto between the Manager and
the Agent, under which the Agent acts as Distributor of units in Japan =subject to tems and conditions.  The
Diistributor is entitled to receive a fee of 0.95% per anmum of the Net Asset Value sfinbutable to such classes of
units of the Class Fund, The Agent and Distributors fee will be acorued daity and caboulated based on the net assct
value az at the immediately preceding Valuation Day and payable quarterly in amears.

Administration

“The Trustee and the Manager on behalf of the Class Fund have entered into an Administrative Services Agrecment
with Bank of Mew York Mellon (USA) dated 27 January 2002, under which Bank of New York Mellon through its
Altemnative Investment Services group (BNYM-AIS) acts as Administrator to the Class Fund. The fee payable to
the Admimistrator 15 based upon an agreed upon fee schedule included i the agreement. The fee 15 accrued daily
and payable quarterly m armrears. If the net assets of the Class Fund are less than 250 million then the fee will be 8
basis points, if the net assets are between 250 million and 500 mallion then the fee will be & basis points, i the net
asscls are greater than 500 million then the fee will be 4 basia points of the net assets of the Class Fund. However,
there is a minimaen annual administration fee of $89,000,

Investment Manager

Asset Management One Intemnational Ltd. (the “Investment Manager™) has been appointed as Investment Manager
tes the Trust pursuant to the Investment Management Agrecment dated 27 January 2012, pursusst to which the
Investment Manager is authorized to supervise and direct the investment and remvestment of aszets in each account,
with fill suthesity and at its dizeretion. These function: were delegated from the Manager to the Investsment
Masmger.

The Investment Manager is enditled to receive a management fee of 0.63% per anoem of the et asset valug of the
Clags Fund, The fee iz accrued daily and caleulated based on the net aszet value a2 2 the immedistely preceding
Valuation Day and is pavable quarterly in aears.

Sub-Investment Manager

The Investment Manager has delegated (o Aspect Capital Limited (the “Sub-Investment Manager”™y the
responsibility for the management of the investrnent and re-investment of the Class Fund's assets pursuant to the
Sub-Tnvestment Management Agreement dated 27 January 2012,

The Sub-Investment Manager 15 entitled Lo receive out of the assets of the Class Fund a management fee of 1.5% per
anmurm of the net asset value of the pertfolio m USD excliding the unrealized gainslosses of the class hedging
tramsactions (Mote 85 (the “Baseline Portfolic™). The fee is acorued datly and caloulated based on the net asset value
as af the immediately preceding Valuation Day and is payable monthly in arrears,

-5 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

6, Related transactions {continued

Sub-Investment Manager (comtinued)

The Sub-Investment Manager 15 entitled Lo receive outl of the szsets of the Cluss Fund a monthly performance fee
equal to 20.0% of the Net Mew Profits of the Baseline Portfolio as at the end of the month Calculation Period™ )
Net MNew Profits are the sum of (1) the net of all realized profits and losses of the Baseline Portfolio, plus (i) the
change in net unrealized profits and losses of the Baseline Portfolio, bess (i) the relevant fees of the Class Fund
{incheding fees of Trustee, Manager, Administrator, Custodian, Distributor, Investment Manager and Sub-
Investment Manager), which is upper limited to 3. 23%% per annum of the net asset vahee of the Baseline Portfalio,
less (iv)all brokerage coimmissions and transaction expenses, and less (V) i Met New Profite as at the end of the last
preceding Caleulation Period was negative (a " Cummulative Net Loss"), the smount of such Cumulative Net Loss,

Custodian

Bank of Mew York Mellon (the *Custodian™) has been appomted as the Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trustes
pursizant 1o a custody agreement dated 27 Jamuary 2012, The Custodian is entitled 1o receive out of the assels of the
Class Fund a fee of 0.02% per anmum of the net asset value, or such other fee as mav be agreed between the Trustee
and the Custodian from time to time, The Custodian i@ alse entitled to a transaction fee in accordance with its
nommal zcale. The fee i8 accrued daily and ealculated bazed on the net asset value as at the mmediately preceding
Valuation Day and is payable quarterly in amrears,

7. Distributions

“The Investment Manager may direct the Admmistrator who shall act en behalf of the Trustee to make distnbutions
tor feobders of any class of units.  The distibations will be paid out of the income, realized and wrealized capital
gains and'or any distributable funds of the Class Fund attributable to the relevant class of units, Further, the
Investment Marager may direct the Administrator on behalf of the Trustee to pay distributions out of the capital of
the Class Fund o considered necessary by the Investment Manager bo mamitain a reasonable level of distrbutions for
the Class Fund, During the period, the following disbursements were made:

Year ended 30 Year ended 30

November 2021 MNovember 2020
Distribution paid from AU Class 5 (193500 % (36,4420
8 (19350 5 (36,442}

8. Unils in issue

Three classes of umits, designated as USD (USD hedged) class units, AUD (ALUD hedged) class units, JPY (JPY
hedged) ¢ lass units, are available for subscripiion.

Triitien! Ofer Peried
Subscription of wnits by eligible investors were available during the initial offer period at a subscription price of:

USD (USD hedged) Class Unit - USS10000 per Unit
- AUD AUD hedeed)y Class Unit - AUDL0.00 per Unit
- JPY (JPY hedged) Class Unit - ¥10,000 per Unit
Units which were subscribed for durmg the Dnitial Offer Period were issued on the 16 March 2012,
St et Subee riplicre
Units of the apphicable class of unitz will be available for subscription at the relevant subscription price applicable

oft eich dealng day (dailv). The subseription price per unil of a class of units will be the net aset valie per wil of
such class of units determined as at the valuation point on the valuation day fallmg on the relevant dealing day .

e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

8. Units in issue {continued)

Mrvinnian sebscripiions

“The mmimum subscription amounl for USD (USD hedged) class units by an investor 15 USS100 and in incremiental
amoumts of USS001 thereafter or 10 Units and in meremental amounts of 0001 uni therealler.  The minimum
subscription amount for AUD (AUD hedged) class unils 15 AUDIOO and in incremental amounts of ALUDO.01
thereafter or 10 units and i incremental amounts of (L0031 Unit thereatter.  The minimum subscription amount for
the JFY (JPY hedged) class units is ¥100000 and in mvcremental amounts of ¥1 thereafter or 1 unit and i incremental
amoumts af 0,001 wmnit thereafler.

Redempions

The umits of the Clazs Fumd are redeemable at the option of the Unitholder on each dealing day at the repurchase
price, provided that the redemption notice has been received by the Administrater not less than 1 business day pries
to thee redevant dealing day.  The repurchmse price per unit will be the net asset value per unit of the relevant class of
units determined as at the valuation point on the valuation day falling on the relevant dealing day .

Unit trangactions during the vear ended 30 November 2021 are as follows:

Class Clas Class
USIH hedged AUD hedged JPY hedged
(IS0} AUD™) [IFY ™) Total

Units at beginning of vear 1186944 106 588 ERET 1652336
Units issued during the venr 13,544 - - 13,54
Umits redeemedd duning the vear (813.861) {1917} {119.408) (541.186)
Units at the end of year 186,627 95,671 239.53% TR0
Met Asset Value par Unit § 9.03 ALS 751 ¥ 506774

Unit transactions during the year ended 30 MNovember 2020 are as follows:

Class Cliss Class
USIH hedged AUD hedged JPY hedged
[ UsDey {AUD™) [“JEY™) Tatal

Units at begmnmg of vear 1,025.849 464459 433,303 1923611
Units issued during the year 360,389 - 34,951 395 340
Units redeemed during the year (155,254} {$57.871% {109, 450% {GGE615)
Units at the end of year 1,156,944 106,558 LELE ] 1,652,336
Mt Asset Valoe per Unit £ .62 AUS 746 ¥ 7,744,584
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

8. Units in issue (continued)

The Class Fund's capital is prmarily represented by these units. In accordance with the objectives outlined in
MNote 1 and the risk management policies m Note 9, the Class Fund endeavors to mvest the subscrptions received
from the Unithelder into appropriate nvestments while mamtaining sufficient lquidy 1o meel redemptions, with
such liquidity being augmented by short-term borrowings or redemption of mvestments where necessary.

As at 30 November 2021 and 20240, all units of the Class Fund were held by one Unitholder.

%, Financial risk management
Fivawieial risk frctors

The Class Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk
and interest rate risk ), credit risk and Hguidity risk

The Class Fund is also exposed to operational risks such as custody risk. Custody risk is the risk of loss of securities
held in custedy occasioned by the insolvency or negligence of the custodian. Albough an appropriate legal
framework i in place that eliminates the risk of less of value of the securities held by the custodian, in the event of
itz failure, the ability of the Class Fund to ransfer securities might be tesngorarily impaired.

The Class Fund's overall nsk management program seeks Lo madmize the retume derived for the level of rigk to
which the Class Fund is exposed and secks to muminize potential adverse effects on the Class Fund’s financial
performance. The Class Fund uses forward currency contracts to moderate certam risk exposures.

All securities imvestments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximnum loss of capital on long debt securities 15
limited to the fair value of those positions. On short futures positions the maximmum loss of capital can be umlimsted.
The maximum loss of capital on long futures and forward curency contracts is limited to the notional contract
values of those positions.

Merrket risk

a) Price risk:

The Class Fund is exposed to debt securities and derivative price risk.  This arises from investments held by the
Class Fund for which prices in the fiture are uncertain. Where non-moenetary financial instnaments are denominated
im currencics other than the USD, the price initially expressed in foreign currency and then converted into USD will
also fluctate because of changes in forejgn exchiagze rates, Paragraph (b) ‘Foreign exclange risk” below setz out
howe this compeent of price risk = managed and measured,

Dertvatives inclede instruments and contracts, the value of which is linked to one of more underlyving securities,
financial benchmarks or indicez. The value of a derivative depends largely upon price movements in the underlyving
asset, Mary dervatives provide significantly more market exposure than the money paid or deposited when the
transaction i entered into, A relatively small adverse market movement can result not only in the loss of the entire
investiment, but may also expose the Class Fured to the possibility of a loss excesding the original smount invested.
“There can be no assurance that derivatives that the Class Fumd wish to scquire will be made available at amy
particular times on satisfactory terms or at all.

The Class Fund's policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial
instruments within specified limits set by the goveming documents of the Class Fund,

At 30 Movember, the fair value of debt and related derivatives exposed to price nsk are swmmarized m Notes 3
and 4. Included in Mote 4 iz the Class Fund's notional exposure on derivative condracts as well as the industry
ENHOFLE,

s
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continw

The Investment Manager does not manage the Class Fund’s investment strategy to track a benchmark or any other
idest AL 30 MNovemnber 2021, the Clazs Fund's market rigk is affected by three muin components: chinges in actual
markel prices, imerest rate and forcign cumency movements, I the portfolio (excludmg futures comracts) at 30
MNovemnber 2021 had increased by 1026 with all other variables held constant, this would have incressed net assets
attribatab le to Unitholder by approximately £1,161,410 (2020; $2,072 779, Conversely, if the portfolio (exchiding
furares contracks) at 30 MNovember 2021 had decreased by 10%, this would have decreased net assets attributable to
Unitholder by appreccimately (S1,161,410) (2020 (52,072,779,

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based upon the portfolio composition (excluding futires contracts) as at
30 November, The composition of the Class Fund's mvestment portfolio s expected to change over tme.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as st 30 November is nol necessarily indicative of the effect on the
Class Fund's net aseets m the future.

At 30 November 2021, had the notional value of futures contracts (excluding financial futures with notional of
(526,893 0300 subject io nterest rate risk) increased or decreased by 10% with all other vaniables held constant, the
ingrease or decrease respectively m net assets attributable to Unitholder 15 shown below:

Increase'decrease (+-)

MAV impact of
MNet Notiomal 1% notiomal
Fuolures contracts
Currencies 5 (1,120,695 § 12070
Energy 3,003 474 308347
Cirainis 2822171 \2217
Imvelex; 13,038,302 1,303,830
Lomdon Metals 1,602 314 169,231
Materials 832380 83,238
Meats o3 1,648 63,165
Metals {13,045 1,305
Total Mutures contracts ned notional 5 20,976,549

At 30 Movember 2020, had the notional value of futures contracts (excluding financial futures with notional of
$373,825417 subject to imterest rate risk) increased or decreased by 10%% with all other variables held constant, the
inerease or decrease respectively m nef assets attributable to Unitholder is shown below:

Increase'decrease (+-)

NAY impact of
MNet Notional 10 notiomal
Futures confracts
Chrencies 3 1,244,324 124,432
Energy (3,516,720 351672
Cirains 10,179,226 1,017,923
Iredex 6,465,875 646,588
Loauclon Metals 608, 198 960 81
Materials 1,226,550 122655
Meats (1.911.595) 191,160
Metals 5,140,091 514,048
Taotal futures contracts net notlonal i 28,435,049

el
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

9, Financial risk mana enl {continu

The sensitivity amalysis presented above i based upon the future contracts in the portfolic only as at 30 Movember,
“The composition of the Clagz Fund's fishures contracts 15 expected to change over time.  Accordmngly, the sensitivity
anabysis prepared as al 30 November 5 nol necessarily indicative of the effect on the Class Fund’s net assets in the
fukire.

The Sub-Investment Manager aims to deliver the Clags Fund's investment objective through the implementation of a
systematic quantitative mvestment program. The program applies a fully systematic and broadly diversified global
tradimg svstem which deplovs multiple trading strategies that, primarity through the wse of listed fiutures and forward
currency contracts, seek to identify and exploit directional moves in the market belavior of a broad range of
financial instruments and other assets mcluding (but not Lmited o) cumencies, interest rates, equities, equity indices,
debt securities {including bonds) and commodities {mcluding energy, metal and agriculural commeodities).

By maintaining comparatively small exposure to amy individual market and maintaining positions m a variety of
comtracts, the Sub-Investment Manager aims 1o achieve long term diversification.  The Class Fund's policy is 1o
manage price risk through diversification.  Generally. the program mamtains positions m the majority of raded
markels. Market concentration varies according to the strength of sigmals, volatility and liquidity amongst other
factors. The cmphasis i upon siructuring a getuinely diversified set of market nsk allocations that is designed to
maximize the probability of retums wherever profit opportunities appear. Market exposures are moritored daily and
the level of exposure of the program in each market is quantifiable at all imes and changes in accordance with
market volatility and liquidity,

“The program employs a fully automated system to collect, process and analyze market data (including current and
historical price datah and identify and exploit directional moves m market behavior. The prooram trades across a
varicty of frequencies to exploit trends over a range of timescales, Positions are taken according to the ageregate
signal and are adjusted to contrel risk.

b Foreign curreney risk:

The Class Fumdd operates intemationally and holds both monetay and non-mongtary assets denominated in
currencies other than the USD, the functional currency. Foreign currency risk, as defmed in [IFRS 7, arises as the
value of fiture tramsactions, recognized monetary assets and monctary labilitics denominated in other currencics
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. IFRS 7 conziders the foreign ecchange exposure relating (o non-
moenetary assets and liabilities to be a component of market price risk and not foreign currency risk. The Class Fund
monitors the exposure on all foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities,

The table below swnmarizes the Class Fund's monetary assets and liabilities, which are denominated inoa currency
other than the USD at 30 Movember 2021,

Conceniration of foreign ourrency assets and Habilities

{expressed in TSI AUD KREW MYR SEK TEY ZAR

Assetz 4,517 ITRTII 191698 845 23456 15075

{expressec in USD) CAD CHF EUR GRF HE T} JPY SGD THE

Lisbilities (129.902)  (13.561) (141466) (49.916) (56,306) (13365} (4,231} {3228}
= 3=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continw

The tabsle below ammmarizes the Class Fund's monetary assets and Liabilities, which are denominated i a curmency
other than the USD at 30 Movemnber 2020,

Concentration of foreign currency assets and liabilities

{expressed n USD) AUD CHF GRP JFY  ERW MYR THE TRY LAR

Assrls 22846 2368 43101 112297 152330 218853 935 62429 37975
{expressed in USD) CAD  EUR  HED SEK  SGD
Lishilities (54,268) (138363) (L384) (137 (3,729)

The table below summarizes the sensitivity of the Class Fund's net monetary assets and liabilities to changes in
foreign exchange movemnents at 30 November 2021, The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant
foreign exchange rate increased'decreased by the percentages to the USD as shown in the table below, with all other
variables held constant.

{expressed in USD) AUD ERW MYR SEK TRY ZAR
Chenge in exchange rate {1 1% 10%a 1P 1%  10%
et change in MAY 452 17273 18270 &% 1346 1,506
{expressed in USD) CAD  CHF EUR GEF HEKD JPY SGD  THB
Change in exchange rate 10t 10%a 104 10%a 107 1074 10" 1070
Net change m NAY (129900 (L35G (14.047) (49925 (5.631) (0337} (423) (313}

The table below summarizes the sensitivity of the Class Fund’s net monetary assets and liabilities to changes in
foreign exchange movements at 30 November 2020, The analysis 15 based on the assumptions that the relevamt
foreign exchange rate ncreased/decreased by the percentages to the USD as shown in the table below, with all other
variables held constant.

{expressed m US1H) ALD CHF GBF  JPY KEW MYR THE TRY TAR

Change in exchange rale 1025 1076 10% 107 1#s 10% 10#a 104 100

Nt chinge m NAY 2,285 237 4,310 11,230 15233 21885 93 6,243 3,797
{expressed in US0) CAD EUR HED SEK 5GD
Change in exchange rale 1084 1P 1084 lifa 1084
Met change in NAY {5427) (13.836) (13%) (137) (273)
=3]=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continw

The Class Fumd may have exposure to fluctuations in cumency exchange rates through investment of the Class
Fund’s assets in bonds and shoet-term money market metruments denomimsted in currencies olbier than USD. When
investmients are made n non-Us Dellar denominated bonds and short-term meney market instruments, the Class
Fund enters into currency hedgmg transactions.  Such transactions are designed to reduce, but not eliminate,
exchange-rate risk and protect all or any part of the assets of the Class Fund from a depreciation in the foreign
currency against the USD,

With respect to the AUD and JPY claszes (Mote 8), the Clazs Fimd enters into cuwrency hedging tranzactions for the
Unitholders of such classes,

The markets in which foreign exchange transactions are effected are highly volatile, highly specialized and highly
techinical.  Significant changes, including changes in liquidity and prices, can ocour in such makets within very
short periods of time, often within minuies.

Faxchuding forwarids, as at 30 November 2021, the Class Fund's financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are USD denominated, except for (S488.354) (20200 (370,27 510 in fishures condracts.

Al 30 November 2021, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the USD increased or decreased by
10P% with all other variables held constant, the marease of decrease respectively in nel assels allnbuwtable to
Unitholder 15 shown below (excluding the impact of forward cumrency contracts used for class hedaing).

Unrealized gain (loss) of
Torward contracts at

Increase/decrease (+/-)
MNAV impact of 10%

_Currency 30 November 2021 change in FX rate
AUD - USD 74,270 5 38 925
BRL -USD (39,656) 6,034
CAD - UsSD 15,385 208,461
CHF - EUR 43,660 8514
CHF —UsD (14,031) 471,403
CLP-USD (113.462) 113.654
CNH - UsD 36272 170,627
COF -UsD 56,880 134,311
CZK -EUR (5.023) 457
EUR - GBP TI0 i
EUR - HUF (101.977) 9,271
EUR - JFY 1.976 180
EUR — NOK 57,601 5236
EUR - FLN (38,728) 3,520
EUR = SEK it 3589
EUR - UsD 2253 566,436
GEP -USD IB518 38816
IDR - USD 5148 34988
LS - UsD 31,946 3,195
MR - USD (12.326) 213767
IPY - USD 64,080 313,592
KRW - USD (11,357) 236,136
MXN - UsD {76,660 17666

=32
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continued )

Unrealized gain (loss) of
forward contracts al

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Increase/dedr ense (+/-)
NAY impact of 10%

Currency 30 Movember 2021 change in FX rale
NZD - USD S (o149 g 47,730
PEM - USD 4,300 20 569
PHF - USD» T.951 20,795
RUB - USD (3.405) 189460
SGD-USD 230 159,070
THE - USD 77,351 177,265
™WD -UsD 34,7M 256,522
UsD - ZAR 2,513 40,050
-3 394,544
Unrealized gain (loss) of
firtures contracts
denominated in foreign Increase’decrease (+-)
currencies at MNAY impact of 10%
Currency 30 Movember 2021* change in FX rate
AUD 5 (339064 § 5.3%0
CAD (102.237) 10,224
CHF 40, 714) 4,071
EUR (125,369 12,537
GBP (54.416) 5442
HEI 8360 337
JFY (27,141} 2,714
KREW (22,082) 2,203
MYR (2,505) 251
SEK 4,555 456
2GD (10, 7R3y 1.080
THB (12,423) 1,242
TRY (31,656) 3166
ZAR (18,03 1,80
£ {455, 354)
* Total excludes USD amoumts.
=33
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continued )

At 30 MNovember 2020, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the USD increased or decreased by
1% with all other variables held constamt, the meorease or decrease respectively in net ascels slinbutable to
Unitholder i shown below {excludmg the impact of forward cumrency contracts used for class hedging).

Unrealized gain (loss) of Increase/decrease (+/-}

forward contracts at NAY impact of 10%

Currency 30 November 2020 change in FX rate
AUD - USD b4 (66,933 § 360,380
BEL - USD (27,983) 202,799
CAD - UsSD (2,519} 189,048
CHF - EUR (13,537) 1.230
CHF - USD (8.245) 269,176
CLP - USD (23,959) 2604
CNH - USD 257611 A10,761
COP - USD (89,008} 08501
CZK -EUR (43,386) 3.944
EUR - GBP (T&118) 6,920
EUR - HUF (3,405) 310
EUR - JPY (68,252} 6,204
EUR - MOK (T2896) 6627
EUR - FLN (11,031 1,003
EUR - $EK 50,459 4587
EUR - USD 3518 Mb.600
GBF « USD (46935} 13,358
IDK, - USD» (14,329 5017
ILS - UsSD {4,843} 129,516
INE - USD (12,120 158,788
JPY - USD 33,834 643,383
KREW - USD 56,130 325,613
MXN - USD 35423 123,842
NED - USD 155443 575,740
PEN -USD 3,171 261,583
PHP - USD 23,607 67,361
RUB - LS (12.816) 126,282
8GD - USD (903) 90,910
THB - UsSD 10,578 171,058
TWD - USD (35, 558) 493 860
UsSD - ZAR 62,580 211,260

5 51,336
234
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: I N
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021
%, Financial risk management {continued )
Unrealized gain (loss) of
Tutures contracts
denominated in foreign Increase/'dedr ease (+/-)
currencies at MNAY impact of 10%
Currency 30 Movember 2020* change in FX rate
AUD 5 (20287 8 2,009
cap 78,203 7.820
CHF {1,103y 110
EUR 108,008 10,810
GBEP (39,514) 3,951
HED (3, Tal 576
Y (99 A8T) o040
KRW (25.871) 2,587
MYR 10,303 1,030
SEK (8.815) 534
S5GD (1.275) 128
THB 545 55
TRY (36,084 3608
ZAR (269 197) 2,920
£ {TI}ETE}

* Total exchudes USD amoumts.

In accordance with the Class Fund’s palicy, the Sub-Investment Manager mwonitors the Class Fund's net cusmency
position on & daily basis,

¢l Interest rate risk
The Class Fum’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates to the Class Fund's investments in fixed rate deldt
securities, Government debt securities represent 2evo coupon securities with maturities a2 follows:

As at 30 November 2021 ; Maturity
U, & Treasury Bills (U755 10,957,000 notional) 2021-2022
As at 30 November 2020; Maturity
U, & Treasury Bills (LIS5 20,804,000 notional) 2020-2021

Additionally, at 30 November 2021, the Clazz Fund holds financial fistures comtracts with net notiosal of
(526,803 0300 (30 Nevemnber 2020: 5373825, 417) and maturities ranging from 1 month to 3 vears.

The value of fixed income asseis may change based on inferest rate fluctuations. Typically, when interest rates
inerease, the vakee of fixed income assets tend to depreciate. On the contrary when inferest rate decreazes, the value
of fixed income assets tend to appreciate. The degree of the change of the value of the fixed income asset will
depend on a mumber of factors including the maturity md conditions of issuance of the fixed income assel

At 30 November 2021 and 2020, should mterest rates have lowered by 10 basis points with all other variables
Fefmaining constant, the ongact on nel assets attributable to Unithalder would not be maternal to the Class Fund,

-35-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continued )

In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment Manager moniters the Class Fund's overall interest
sensitivity on a daily basis

Credlt risk

The Class Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial mstrument will cause a
finanicial loss for the other party by Gulmg to discharge an obligation.

The main cohcentration to which the Class Fund is exposed ariges from the Class Fund's investments in debt
securities.  The Class Fund 15 also exposed to counterparty credit rgk on trading denivative produsts, margin
accounts, cash and cash equivalents, mmounts due from brokers and other receivable balances. The Class Fund
seeks 1o mitigate its exposure to credit risk by placing its cash balances and transacting its securilics activity with
large financial institutions.

AL 30 November 2021 portfolio by rating category for each class of debt secumnities 15 as follows:

Credit Rating 5 Amount o of NAY
L. 8. Treasury Bills AAd 10,956,486 A8

At 30 Novernber 2020 portfolio by rating category for each class of debt securities is as follows:

Credit Rating 5 Ameaunt by ol NAV
U, 8. Treasury Bills AA+ 20,801 616 55,55

The Class Fund meazures credit risk and expected credit losses nsing probability of defalt, exposure at defalt and
less given default. Management consider both historical analysiz and forward-looking information in defermining
any expected credit loss, Cash and cash equivalents which potentially expose the Class Fund to credit risk consist
primarily of call balaces and placements with an original matursty of 3 months or less from placement. The cash
equivalents are placed al Bank of Mew Yok Mellon (which has a S&P credit ratmg of A) and thus are not
considered o pose a significant credit risk.

At 30 Movemnber 2021, all of the Claz= Fund's linancial instruments were held by Bank of New Yok Mellon, Credat
Suisse, Deutschie Bank and Citibank (November 2020: Bank of New York Mellon, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bamk
and Citibank). The brokers are members of a major securilies exchange and a1 30 November 2021 had S&P credut
ratings of A, BEE+, A- and BEB+ respectively (30 Movember 2020: A, BBB+, BBB+ and BBB+), respectively.
Although the Class Fund monitors the brokers, and believes that they are approprate custodians, there 1s no
guarantee that they will not become insolvent.  While both the U8, Banknmptcy Code and the Securities Investor
Protection Act of 1970 seek o protect customer property in the event of a failure, meolvency or hiquidation of a
broker dealer, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of a broker dealer that has custody of Class Fund
assets, the Class Fund would net incur losses due to (1) its assels bemg wmavailable for a period of tme, and ()
ultimately receiving less than fill recovery of its assets, or (i) both.  As substantialky all of the Class Fund's assets
are custodied with four custodians (30 Mevember 2020 four), such losses could be significant and could materialty
impair the ability of the Clazs Fund (o achieve its mvestment objective, Management consider the probability of
defauli to be close to zero as the counterparties have a strong capacity to meef their contractual obligations in the
near e, As a resull, no logs allowance has been recogmized based on 12-month expected credit losses as anmy such
impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Class Fund.

Al tramsactions are settled/paid for upon delivery wsing approved beokers, The risk of default is congidered
manamal, as delivery of securities sold 15 only made once the broker has received payvment.  Payment is made on a

puirchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party Fails to mee ats
obligation.

= A=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continued)
The counterparties to the Class Fund's non-exchange traded derivative confracts are mmjor fmancial institutions,

Management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have a material adverse effect
on the financial comdition of the Class Fund,  In accerdance with the Clasz Fund's policy, the Sub-lnvestment
Manager monitors the Class Fund®s credit position on a daily basis.

“The mastnmumn exposure to credit nsk before any credit enhandements al 30 Novernber 2021 15 the carryimg armounl
of the financial assets as set out in the Statement of Financial Position.

Liguaieliey risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Clazz Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources o seitle its
obligations in full az they Fall due or can only do 2o on terms that are materially disadvantageous,

The Class Fund is exposed to the daily settlement of margin calls on derivatives and to daily cash redemptions of
redeemable shares. [ts policy is therefore to mwvest the majority of itz assels in investments that are traded in an
active market and can be readily disposed, Only a limited proportion of its assets in investments are net actively
traded on a stock exchange.

“The Class Fund enters into futures and forward contrscts which to varying degrees, represent a market sk im excess
of the amount reflected on the Class Fund®s Staternent of Financial Position.  The notional amount of the contract
represents the extent of the Class Fund's participation in these financial instruments.  Markel nsks associated with
such contracts arise due to the possible movements in foreign exchange rates, indices, and securities values
underlying these instruments. Other market and credit risks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid
market for the contracts, that the change in the value of the contract may not directly corvelate with changes i the
valee of the umderlving currencies, comimodities, indices, or securities, of that the coamterparty to the futures of
forward contract defaults on s obligation to perform under the terms of the contract.

The table below analyses the Class Fursd's derivative financial liabilitics that will be settled on a gross basis into
relevant maturity groupings bazed on the remaining peried at the Statement of Financial Pozition date to the earliest
comtractual materity date. The ameounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash Mows,

Amanths Jenwnths Creater Tatal

IO Movender 2021: or less to 12 months than 1 year balance
Financinl Eabilities at fair valoe through profit orloess

(et settled derivatives) S (2AmOSH 5 (Mepem 5 0y 5 (30TREN
IO Mo vender 202k
Fmancinl Babilities at fair value ﬂmﬂua:h met arloss

(et settled derrvatives) 3 4417660y 5 {070 3 (#6.32T) & (465 650G )

R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continued )

The Class Fund's nen-derivative fimancial habalities are due within 3 months of the Statement of Financial Position
date.

Feir ¥eilue Divclosures:

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Class Fund i required to classify far value measmrement usmg a (e value
hierarchy that reflects the simificance of the mpuls used in making the meaaranents. The fair value hierarchy has
the Following levels:

= Queded prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities (level 1),

*  Inputs cther than quoted prices included withm level | that are obzervable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, ag prices) or mdirecty (that is, derived from prices) (Jevel 2).

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value messurement is categorized in ils entirely is
determined on the basis of the lowest level nput that is sigmficant to the fair value measurement in its entirety, For
thaz purpose, the significance of an mpat is assessed spainst the fair vadue mensurement in i entivety. 15 a Gor valoe
measurement uses observable mputs that require sigmificam adjustment based on wnobservable inputs, that
measurement 15 1 level 3 messurement.  Assessing the significance of a particular mput to the far value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability,

The determmation of what constitutes “observable’ requires significant padgment by the Class Fund. The Class
Fund considers observable data to be that markel data that & readily avalable, regularly distributed or updated,
religble and verifiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are actively imvolved in the
relevant market,

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Class Fund’s financial assets and labilties (by
class) measured @t fair value at 30 Novemnber 2021 :

Total
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balanece
118, Treasury Bills 5 10956486 8 - & - & 10,956 486
Forward currency contracts - 2155141 - 2158141
Futures 686567 - - &86,567
Total assefs -3 11,643,053 8 2185141 & - 5 13798,1%4
Total
Liahilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 halance
Forward crenicy contracts S - i (1497530} & = 5 (1497.530)
Futures (1.574.501) - - (1574501
Toedal Habilities 5 {1.574.501) § {1.497.530) S - 8 (3,072,031}

=38
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

%, Financial risk management {continued)

The following table analvses within the fair value hierarchy the Class Fund’s financial assets and habilities (b
clu==) mensured o fur value at 30 Novemnber 2020:

Total
Aswiels Lasved 1 Lawvel 2 Lovel 3 halance
1.5, Treasury Bills 5 80616 8 - 3 - & 20801616
Forward currency contracts - 2329658 - 2,320,658
Firtures 2,724,531 - - 2,724,531
Tutal assets : 1 23,526,147 8 2329658 & - % 25855805
Total
Liahilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
Forwird currency contracts 5 - 5 (2405489 & = B (2403.489)
Futures (3,391.207) - - (2.291.207)
Total Habilities § (2291207 5 (2403459 S - % (4.694.696)

Investments wiwose vahies are based on quoted market prices in active munkets, and therefore classified within
level 1, mclude active listed equities, mosl exchange traded derivatives, manmy US government treasury bifls and
cerfain non-US sovercign obligations. The Class Fund does not adjust the quoted price for these instruments,

Fimancial mstruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active bul sre valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supporicd by observable inputs are classified within
level 2 These include certain non-investment-grade sovereign obligations, most investment -grade corporate bonds,
investments in other funds where redemption & not restricted, thinly traded listed equities and some over-ihe-
coumter derivatives, Az level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and’or are subject
to transfer restrictions, valeations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andior non-transferability, which are
generally bazed on available markel information

Investments classified within level 3 have significant uncbservable nputs, as they trade nfrequently or not at all
As observable prices are not available for these securities, valuation techniques are used to derive the fair value. At
30 MNovember, the Class Fund held no level 3 investments

i, Assets and liabilities nol carried at Gir value but for which I ue is disclosed

Investments are carried at fair value, The camying values of all cher financial assets and labilities are considered to
approxinate far value due Lo the short-tesm maturity of these insniments

Cash and cagh equivalents include cagh in hand and deposits held with banks, Margin represents collateral cash
deposits held in respect of open exchange-traded fisteres contracts and forward cumrenicy exchange Cash and cash
equivalents and margin accounts have been determimed using level 1 inputs,

Subscriptions receivable and other assets inchude the contractual ameunts for settlement of other obligations due 1o
the Class Fund.  Payables and acoruals represent the contraciual amounts and obligations due by the Class Fund for
settlement of redemiptions and expenses. These recervables and payvables have been detenmined using level 2 inputs.

= 30
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

10, _Assets and liabilities not carried st fair value but for which fair value is disclosed {continued})

The puttable value of Participating Units 15 calculated based on the net differance between total assets and all other
liabilities of the Class Fund m accordamce with the Class Fund®s governing documents. These Participating Units
are ot traded on an active market. A demand feature is attached to these umits, a= they are redeemable at the
Unitholder’s eption and can be put back to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share
of the Class Fund’s net asset value attributable to the Unit Class (Notes 2 and 81 The fair value is based on the
amoumt pavable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid  The impact
of discounting in this instance is not material. As such, Level 2 &= deermed to be the most appropriste categorization
for met azsets attrivitable to the Unithalder.

Lo 5

In the normal course of business, the Trustee and Manager on behalf of the Class Fund enter into contracts that
condain a variely of representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The Trustee's and
Mamager™s maximum exposure under these amangements is unknown, as this would mvolve future claims that may
be made against the Trusee and the Mamager that have mot vel occurred, however, based on experience,
management expects the risk of loss to the Class Fund to be remote.

12, Subsequent events
Marmagement has performed a subsequent events review from 1 December 2021 throwgh to 30 March 2022,

Durmg this period there were subscriptions amounting to $8,032,084 and redemptions amounting te 5$4,328.455
respectively. There are no other subsequent events to report that relate to the Class Fund.

-40-
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

Forward Contracts Maturity Date Unrealized Gain

Buy BRL T12,518 and Sell USD 125,000 15 December 2021 Qa7
Buy CHF 4,578,818 and Scll EUR 4,300,000 15 December 2021 115490
Buy CHF 533,801 and Sell USD a00,000 15 December 2021 3170
Bary CLP 41,792,280 and Sell USD 50,000 15 December 2021 430
Buy CNH 28,557,029 and Sell USD 4,400,000 15 December 2021 79,748
Buy CZK 1,276,708 and Sell ELE 50,040 15 December 2021 i’
Buy EUR 100,000 and Scll USD 113,232 15 December 2021 50
By EUR 2,150,000 and Sell NOK 21,315,127 15 December 2021 84812
Buy EUR 2, 300,000 and Sell HUF 824,780,445 15 December 2021 4357
Buy EUR 550,000 and Sell CZK 13,972,7 15 December 2021 2,808
Buy EUR 6,300,000 and Sell SEK 63,752,320 15 December 2021 74432
Buy EUTR 800,000 and Sell GBP 676,903 15 December 2021 7131
Buy EUR 975,000 and Secll PLN 4468646 15 Decembrer 2021 19,842
Buy GBF 2,084,196 and Sell EUR. 242500 15 December 2021 21,335
By HUF 220,483 545 and Sell EUR 600,00 15 December 2021 5171
Bary IDE 10803 245073 and Sell USD 750,000 15 December 2021 3,065
Buy ILS 5,765,976 and Sell USD 1,800,000 15 December 2021 26,816
Buy [INR 77,305 3200and Sell USD 1,025,000 15 December 2021 2297
Buy JPY 130,238,701 and Sell EUR 1, (4,000 15 December 2021 18,9407
By JPY 148,044,751 and Sell USD 1,300,000 15 Decembrer 2021 20
Buy KEW 11931698 and Sell USD 100,000 15 December 2021 584
Bary MOK 17,539,962 and Sell ELTR, 1, 700,000 15 December 2021 8617
Buy PEN 1,644,914 and Sell USD 400,040 15 December 2021 4,048
Buy PHP 45,838,073 and Sell LIS SO0, () 15 December 2021 8,835
Buy FL 116,705 and Sell EUR 25,000 15 December 2021 7
Buy THBE 5,067,794 and Sell USD 150,000 15 Decamber 2021 4
Buy TWD 41948213 and Sell USD 1,500,000 15 December 2021 8603
Buy USD 1,025,000 and Sell ILS 3,184, 615 15 December 2021 16,029
Buy USD 1,075,000 and Sell BRL 5938 4% 15 December 2021 24872
Buy USD 1,200,000 and Sell CLP 972,763,810 15 December 2021 26,389
Buy USD 1,575,000 and Sell MXN 32,884,276 15 December 2021 47,214
Buy USD 1,925,000 and Sell KRW 2,273,065 435 15 December 2021 8,797
Buy USD 2,200,000 and Sell COP 8403675138 15 December 2021 100,227
Buy USD 2,325 000 and Sell SGD 3, 142,338 15 December 2021 24,336
Buy USTY 2,600,000 and Sell CHF 2,371 860 15 Decemnber 2021 16,08
Buy USD 3, 200,000 and Sell THE 104,613,752 15 December 2021 95135
Buy USD 3,600,000 and Sell JPY 396,840477 15 December 2021 90,580
Buy USD 3,762,267 and Sell WZD 3,350,000 15 December 2021 113613
Buy USD 3000000 and Sell RUB 21,734,443 15 December 2021 8579
Bary USD 4,600,000 and Sell CAD 5,797,358 15 December 2021 64,503
Buy USD 4, 800,000 and Sell TWD 132,625,971 15 Decembrer 2021 3031
Buy USD 450,000 and Sell PEN 1,806,159 15 December 2021 6,289
Buy USD 450,000 and Sell PHP 22,627,808 15 December 2021 1,347
Buy USD 5,558,783 and Sell GBP 4,100,000 15 December 2021 112,347

-4] -
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS JALTHTED
YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

Forward Contracts Maturity Date Unrealized Gain

Buy USD 5,875,982 and Sell ALY 8,000, (€1} 15 December 2021 g 179,248
Buy USD 750,000 and Sell IDE 10,708,208,928 15 December 2021 3,608
Buy USD 7300000 and Sell INR 55 596,455 15 December 2021 5873
Bary USD 8,006,948 and Sell EUR 6, 804,000 15 December 2021 313,150
By USD 900,000 and Sell ZAR 13,726,753 15 December 2021 40,604
Buy ZAR 806,817 and Sell USD 50,000 15 December 2021 512
Buy JPY 2,06% 385,868 and Sell USD 18,035,250 30 December 2021 273,136
Buy USD 46,391 and Sell AUD 64,207 30 Decemboer 2021 655
By JPY 44,946,085 and Sell EUR 350,000 16 March 2022 419
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell IDR 5,070,660,000 16 March 2022 114

s 2155141

Forward Contracts

Maturity Diite Unirealized {Loss)

Buy AUD 3,200,000 and Sell USD 2,383,348
Buy BRL 5,708,634 md Scll USD 1,675,000
Buy CAD 2,238,572 and Sell USD 1,804, 000
Buy CHF 365,511 and Sell USD 400,004

By CLE 2,208 856,280 and Sell USD 2,800,000
Buy COP 3,430,203 850 and Sell UST 900,000
Buy CZK 43,314,074 and Sell EUR 1.700,000
Buy EUR 1,000,000 ard Sell JPY 130,662,598
By EUR 150,000 and Sell NOK 1,543,376
Buy ELTR 175,000 and Sell PFLN 821,754

Buy EUR 2,500,000 and Sell USD 2,915,103
By EUE 200,000 and Sell SEK 2,051,548

Buy ELUTR 400,000 and Sell GBP 342,660

Buy EUR 600,000 and Sell CHF 644,154

By EUR 900,000 and Sell CZK 23,074,116
Buy GBP 1,700,000 and Sell USD 2,342,108
Buy GBP 2,645,799 and Sell EUR 3,125,000
Buy HUF 1,227.926,075 and Sell EUR 3,500,000
Buy IDE. 7,169,394 41 5 and Sell USD S00,000
Buy INR 143,317,004 and Sell USD 1,925,000
By JEY 88,161,290 and Sell USD 800,000
Buy KRW 931,704,341 and Sell USD 800,000
Bary MM 41,506,480 and Sell USD 2,050,000
By BOK 17,653,205 and Sell EUR 1,720,000
Buy NZD 6,600,000 and Scll USD 4,693,203
Buy PEN 401,628 and Sell USDy 100,000

By FHP 5,037,124 and Sell USD 100,000
Buy PLN 15,748 402 and Sell EUR 3,425 0:00
Buy RUB 170,631,779 and Sell USD 2, 300,000
Buy SEK 17,055,205 and Scll EUR. 1, 700,000
Buy 8GD 1,346,032 and Sell USD 1,004,000

15 December 2021 § (104,654
15 December 2021 (65,519
15 December 2021 (48,714
15 December 2021 (1,905
15 December 2021 (135.079)
15 December 2021 (42.894)
15 December 2021 (3.381)
15 December 2021 (17,350)
15 December 2021 {26M0)
15 December 2021 i1.2149)
15 December 2021 (82824
15 December 2021 (702
15 December 2021 (2.025)
15 December 2021 (21,8300
15 December 2021 (4,563)
15 December 2021 (83.820)
15 December 2021 (25.671)
15 December 2021 (150,719)
15 December 2021 (273
15 December 2021 (20,485)
15 December 2021 (20,3000
15 December 2021 (14,560
15 December 2021 (117.450)
15 December 2021 (35,538)
15 Decembrer 2021 (192,060
15 December 2021 (1,334)
15 December 2021 (126
15 Decembrer 2021 (57.358)
15 December 2021 (121210
15 December 2021 (36,459)
15 Decembrer 2021 (14,488
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Forward Contracts Maturity Date Unrealized {Loss)
Buy THE 43,203,982 and Sell USD 1,300,000 15 December 2021 5 (17,735
Buy TWD 29083 262 and Sell USD 1,050,000 15 December 2021 (4,044
Buy USD 1,322,000 and Sell KRW 1.579,078.577 15 December 2021 (6,170
Buy USD 1, 704,000 and Sell JPY 193,950,808 15 December 2021 (15,284
Buy USD 100,000 and Sell COP 402,030,850 15 December 2021 {453)
Buy USD 100,000 and Sell RUB 7,597,003 15 December 2021 (1.863)
Buy USD 100,000 and Scll THBE 3,384, 768 15 December 2021 (458)
Buy USD 2,750,000 and Sell CNH 17,680,064 15 Decomber 2021 (23476)
Buy USD 200,000 and Sell CAD 256,281 15 December 2021 {404
Buy USD 25,040 and Sell BRL 141,411 15 December 2021 o]
Buy USD 275,000 and Sell 56D 376,353 15 December 2021 (547
Buy USD 3, 100,000 and Sell CHF 2,875,645 15 December 2021 (31,995
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell PEN 1,444,051 15 Decemibrer 2021 (4.750
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell PHP 17,759,400 15 December 2021 (2.12%)
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell TWD 9,734,308 15 December 2021 (75
Buy USD 374,394 and Sell NZD 550,000 15 December 2021 (702
Buy USD 400,000 and Sell CLP 335 856,835 15 December 2021 (5,202
Buy USD S0.000 and Sell INR. 3,763,396 15 December 2021 (1)
Buy USD 50,000 and Sell ZAR 808,781 15 Decembrer 2021 (635
Bary USD 505,034 and Sell IDR 7,265, 130,581 15 December 2021 (1,3&5}
Buy USD $72.000 and Sell MM 12,514,640 15 December 2021 (6.424)
Buy USD 70,885 and Sell AUD 100,004 15 December 2021 i324)
Buy USD 775,000 and Sell ILS 2,480,531 15 December 2021 (10,8940
Buy USD 901,278 and Sell EUR 800,000 15 December 2021 (5.051)
Buy ZAR 5,894 380 and Sell USD 400,000 15 December 2021 (30,9700
Bu}- AUD 857,088 and Sell USD 621,133 30 December 2021 (10,61 2}
Buy USD 6,671 and Sell JPY 766,714 30 December 2021 (112
g (1.497,530)
Average Market Unrenlized
Heolding _Par Vahie _Direction _Book Price Price _Gain'{Loss)
U8, Treasury Bill 1240902021 1,100,000 Long 1099989 1099995 § 4
U5, Treasury Bill 12/16/2021 2,200,000 Longz 2,199,964 2,199,936 (28)
U8, Treasury Bill 1202372021 2,700,000 Long 2,699,964 2,690,785 (179)
LS, Treasury Bill 010672022 2,657,000 Long 2656900 2,656,890 (19)
U8, Treasury Bill 0171372022 1,500,000 Long 1,499,549 1,496 996 (1)
UL, Treasury Bill 02/03/2022 B0, 000 Long 700,943 799,936 (7}
140,956,718 10,956,486 § 232)
-43-
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; - AS . I N
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED)

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

Unrealized
Fulures Coniracis Direction Cain
S0DAY EUROS FUTR Dec23 {15 Sheort 5 663
SODAY EUROS FUTR Jun®3 (PERFETTAL) (1 Shont 375
20DAY EUROS FUTR Mar24 (16) Shent 1,063
20DAY EUROS FUTR Sep23 4 Short 113
S0DAY STERLING FU DEC23 25} Short 8,047
20DAY STERLING FU! hin23 (240 Short 3,660
20DAY STERLING FU MARZ (25} Short 6,267
0DAY STERLING FU Sep23 (26) Short 11,662
AMSETERDAM IDX FUT DEC21 (1 Short 2,867
AUDUSD CRMNCY FUT DEC21 (B Shert 195
BP CURRENCY FUT DEC21 (23 Short 3244
CE CURRENCY FUT DEC21 (4] Shodt L
CHF CURRENCY FUT DECI (1 Short s
COCOA FUTURE MARZ2 1] Shoat 7510
COCOA FUTURE MAY22 (3 Short 1,250
COCOA FUTURE - IC Mar22 (ICE) () Short 4,953
COCOA FUTURE - ICMAY22 (41 Short 1,979
COFFEE C FUTURE JUL22 E) Long 14,5944
COFFEE C FUTURE MARI2 5 Long 314258
COFFEE C FUTURE MAY?22 4 Long 26,363
CORN FUTURE MAR22 5 Leng LR E
E-MINI RUSS 2000 DEC21 (6] Short 3170
EURO FX CURR FUT DEC21 (] Short 2388
EURO-BOEL FUTURE DEC2I 33 Long 19,780
EURO-BUND FUTUEE DEC2I1 15 Long 24,423
EURO-0AT FUTURE DEC21 1 Long 657
EURO-SCHATZ FUT DECZ1 19 Long 3702
FTSE CHINA AS0 DEC2] (54) Short 17,957
GASOLINE RBOB FUT FEBI2 15 Long 2,486
HANG SENG IDX FUT DEC21 [y Short 1,873
HSCEI FUTURES DEC21 (8 Short 6,497
ICE ECX EMISSION DEC22 E) Long 47,204
JPN 107y BONDIOSE) DEC2IL 7 Long 17,238
JPM YEN CURR FUT DEC21 (4] Short 5,060
KOREA 3YR BND FUT DEC21 10 Long 268
KOSPI2 INX FUT DEC21 (20 Short 68,401
LEAN HOGS FUTURE APR22 13 Long 2,7
LIVE CATTLE FUTRE APR22 3 Long 480
LIVE CATTLE FUTR JUN22 8 Long 6,530
LME ALUMINUM FORWARD 12/ 52021 - Short 113,851
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Unrealized
Futures Coniracis Direction Cain
LME COPPER FORWARD 127152021 - Long 5 2,778
LME ZINC FORWARD ($) 12152021 . Long 50,165
NIKKEI 225 (8GX) DEC2I (1 Short 4,730
OMXE30 IND FUTURE DEC21 (11} Short 4,555
PLATINUM FUTURE JAN22 (5 Short 15,745
RAFESEED EURO FEB22 2 Long 1,060
SGX NIFTY 50 DEC21 ] Shert 4,833
SHOHT EURO-BTP FU DEC21 25 Long 1,80
SILVER FUTURE MAR2? (2 Short 4, 800
SOYBEAN FUTURE JANZ2 (B Short 137
VETOXX FUTURE DEC21 1 Long 56
WTI CRUDE FUTURE JAN22 [:1] Shodt T6. 430
3 596,567
Unrenlized
Futures Contracts Direction {Laoss)
AUST 10Y BOND FUT DEC2] (39 Shert 8§ (10,559)
AUST 3YE BOND FUT DEC21 59 Long (27,707)
BANK ACCEFT FUTE SEP23 {10y Short (B3
BIST 30 FUTURES DEC21 (238) Short {31,656)
BRENT CRUDE FUTR Feb22 (ICE) & Long (73,9100
BRENT CRUDE FUTR Mar22 (1CE) 2 Leng (24, 00N
CAC40 10 EURD FUT DEC21 13 Long (61,228)
CAN 10YR BOMND FUT MAR22 42 Shont (79,754
CANOLA FUTR (WCE) MAR22 5 Long (1,857
CATTLE FEEDER FUT JAN22 (3] Short (7,338)
CBOE VIX FUTURE JAN22 (1 Shert (3,328
COFF ROBUSTA 10TN MAR22 5 Long (210
COPPER FUTURE MAR2Z 1 Leong (4,225
CORN FUTURE MAY22 5 Long {4, 300)
COTTON NO.2 FUTE MAR22 15 Long (34,308)
CRUDE PALM OIL FUI FEB22 3 Long {2,505
DAX INDEX FUTURE DEC21 2 Long (49.593)
DJLA MINI E-CBOT DEC21 11 Long (53,6500
EURD STOXX 50 DEC21 17 Long (38717
EURD-BUXL 30% BND DEC21 (2 Short (12,387)
FTSE 100 1D FUT DEC21 12 Long (29,7600
FTSE TAIWAN INDEX DEC21 14 Leng {9,810
FTSEJSE TOP 40 DEC21 (7 Short (18.003)
FTSEMIB IDX FUT DEC2] [ Long (60,:423)
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YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

2

M

Unrealized
Fulures Coniracis Direction {Laoss)
GASOLINE RBOB FUT JAN22 1 Long & (5,426
GOLD 100 OF FUTR FEB22 2 Long (18,8007
KC HRW WHEAT FUT MAR22 12 Long (7,038)
KOREA 10%R BND FU Dec2] (35 Short (93,207)
LEAN HOGS FUTURE FEB22 4 Long {2,6100
LIVE CATTLE FUTR FEB22 i Shert (5,8300
LME ALUMINUM FORWARD 03/16/2022 5 Long {17,156)
LME COPPER FORWARD 03/14/2022 | Long (12,65%)
LME LEAD FORWARD 03/16/2022 2 Long (10,300
LME LEAD FORWARD 12/15/2021 Long (3,085)
LME NICKEL FORWARD 03/1672022 & Long (9, 845)
LME NICKEL FORWARD 127152021 . Leng (5,817)
LME ZINC FORWARD (5) 03/1&2022 5 Long (15,598
LONG GILT FUTURE MAR22 (31 Short (62,124)
LOW 53U GASOIL G FEB22 2 Long (23,275}
LOW 50U GASOIL G JAN22 3 Long (34,575}
MILL WHEAT EURD MAR22 25 Long 4.571)
MSCI EAFE DEC21 5 Long (19,3507
MECT EMGMET DEC21 7 Long (1,515)
MAECT SING IX ETS DEC21 8 Long (10, 798
NWASDAQ 100 E-MINI DEC2I 2 Long (2,350
MATURAL GAS FUTR FEB22 5 Long (16,4700
MATURAL GAS FUTR JANI2 7 Long (33,8400
WIKKEI 225 (CME) DEC21 (1 Short (1,275)
WY HARB ULSD FUT JANI2 4 Long (63,126)
RED WHEAT FUT MGE MAR22 5 Long (9,900)
S&PTSEX 60 IX FUT DEC21 18 Long (1%, 636)
S&PS00 EMINI FUT DEC21 5 Long (3,225)
SET50 FUTURES DEC21 38 Long (12.423)
SGX IRON ORE 62%0JAN22 2 Shor (2,564
SOYBEAN MEAL FUTR JANZZ (100 Short (8,600
SOYBEAN OIL FUTR JANI2 11 Long (40,403 )
SFI 200 FUTURES DEC21 7 Long (15,659)
SUGAR #11 (WORLD) MAR22 [ Long (8,758)
SUGAR #11 (WORLD) MAY22 15 Long (22,960)
SWISS MKT IX FUTR DEC21 17 Long (40,714
TOPLX [NDX FUTRE DECZ1 4 Long (49,1061
US 10YR MOTE (CET)MAR22 (5] Short (B6,422)
US SYR NOTE (CBT) MAR22 k1) Short (7423
Us LONG BONDICBET) MAR22 ki Short (33,258)
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED)

YEAR ENDED 3 NOVEMBER 2021

Unrealized
Futures Coniracis Direction {Laoss)
US ULTEA BOMND CBT MARI2 (5D Short 5 (40, 93E)
WHEAT FUTURE(CBT) MAR22 1 Long (3,5500
WHEAT FUTURE(CBT) MA Y22 i Long (6,575)
WHITE SUGAR (ICE) MARZ2 1 Long (1044
WTI CRUDE FUTURE FEB22 2 Leong (26,345

8 (1,574,500}

o
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2022
v v
31,787,242.66 3,890,440,629
4,269,180.81 522,505,039
2,999,062.16 367,055,218
815,884.22 75,061,348
2,906,981,819
274,353.36
90,754.21
296,871.33
10.93 1,338
8.99 827
A11/1v)
9,792
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2022 2,000,000 4,478
10,000,000 2,000,000
2022 5,338,461 5,337
2022
One
2022 450 21

1,000
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131

23 103

UFJ 122.39
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020

7,747,717 948,243 9,684,838 1,185,327
416,812 51,014 1,099,270 134,540
599,076 73,321 443,517 54,282
12,287 1,504 13,124 1,606
56,793 6,951 62,528 7,653
8,832,685 1,081,032 11,303,277 1,383,408
136,966 16,763 156,560 19,161
8,969,651 1,097,796 11,459,837 1,402,569
3,183,319 389,606 5,452,331 667,311
434,514 53,180 506,225 61,957
364,045 44,555 245,611 30,060
3,981,878 487,342 6,204,167 759,328
2,000,000 244,780 2,000,000 244,780
2,987,773 365,674 3,255,670 398,461
4,987,773 610,454 5,255,670 643,241
8,969,651 1,097,796 11,459,837 1,402,569
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020

41,671 5,100 63,993 7,832
386 47
41,671 5,100 63,607 7,785
4,697,515 574,929 4,572,825 559,668
221,622 27,124 244,788 29,960
38,400 4,700 38,400 4,700
4,957,537 606,753 4,856,013 594,327
4,999,208 611,853 4,919,620 602,112
10 2,646,420 323,895 2,643,805 323,575
1,006,565 123,193 1,018,357 124,637
361,491 44,243 361,491 44,243
42,629 5,217 47,053 5,759

10,000 1,224
4,067,105 497,773 4,070,706 498,214
932,103 114,080 848,914 103,899
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2021 12 31
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2020 12 31
2,000,000 244,780 2,406,756 294,563 4,406,756 539,343
848,914 103,899 848,914 103,899
2,000,000 244,780 3,255,670 398,461 5,255,670 643,241
932,103 114,080 932,103 114,080
(1,200,000) (146,868) (1,200,000) (146,868)
2,000,000 244,780 2,987,773 365,674 4,987,773 610,454
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020

932,103 114,080 848,914 103,899
42,629 5,217 47,053 5,759
974,732 119,297 895,967 109,657
682,458 83,526 (47,051) (5.759)
(155, 559) (19,039) 48,332 5,915
837 102 (6,686) (818)
5,735 702 12,704 1,555
(2,269,012) (277,704) (1,473,722) (180, 369)
(71,711) (8,777) 27,467 3,362
118,434 14,495 11,848 1,450
(714,086) (87,397) (531,141) (65,006)
(23,035) (2,819) (26,100) (3,194)

(1,200,000) (146,868)
(1,937,121) (237,084) (557,241) (68,201)
9,684,838 1,185,327 10,242,079 1,253,528
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7,747,717 948,243 9,684,838 1,185,327

749 92
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2021 2020 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

Cayman Islands Monetary

Authority

2031
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15

2021 2020 12 31
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020 12 31
16 12
2021 2020 12 31
12
2021 2020
3,247,717 4,184,838
4,500,000 5,500,000
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7,747,717 9,684,838
2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
469,711 310,757
129,365 132,760
599,076 443,517

2021 2020
91 180 25,716 1,560
181 360 75,730 52,100
361 76,634 63,427
178,080 117,087
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2021 2020
(10, 000)
10,000
2021 2020
3,183,319 5,452,331
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2019 12 31 741,880 372,854 1,114,734
26,100 26,100

2020 12 31 767,980 372,854 1,140,834
23,035 23,035

2021 12 31 791,015 372,854 1,163,869
2019 12 31 657,498 279,723 937,221
25,169 21,884 47,053

2020 12 31 682,667 301,607 984,274
26,243 16,386 42,629

2021 12 31 708,910 317,993 1,026,903
2020 12 31 85,313 71,247 156,560
2021 12 31 82,105 54,861 136,966

2021 2020
10,000,000
2,000,000 2020 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
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2021 12 31
1,200,000 2020 0
Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd.
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly Secretaries Limited
2021 2020
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100 100
TillyDirectors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
2021 12 31 975,610 2020 975,610
2021 2020
12 31
416,812 1,099,270
987 477
760,884 618,720
3,932 8,544
12 31
238,600 238,600
25,000 25,000
361,491 361,491
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2011 8 31

2021 12 31
143,660

47.76 2020 41
2021 2020

2021 2020 12 31
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2021
0.01 0.05 3,247,717 4,500,000 7,747,717
5.26 416,812 416,812
599,076 599,076
12,287 12,287
4,275,892 4,500,000 8,775,892
0.005 0.01 3,183,319 3,183,319
434,514 434,514
3,617,833 3,617,833
658,059 4,500,000 5,158,059
2020
0.01 0.15 4,184,838 5,500,000 9,684,838
5.26 1,099,270 1,099,270
443,517 443,517
13,124 13,124
5,740,749 5,500,000 11,240,749
0.004 0.005 5,452,331 5,452,331
506,225 506,225
5,958,556 5,958,556
(217,807) 5,500,000 5,282,193
2021 12 31 30 2020
30 1,444 2020 505
30 2020 30 30
1,444 2020 505
2021 12 31 30 2020
30 13,500 2020 16,500
30 2020 30
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30 13,500 2020 16,500

30

2021 2020 12 31

2020

2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020 12 31

2021

54,556 54,556
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2020
56,638 (1,445) 55,193
10 2021 12 31 5,456
2020 5,519
12
2020
13
15
2021 2020 12 31
400,000 500,000
2021 2020 12 31
14
2022 22
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexprassed in United States dollars)

2021 — 200
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Mote 3) $ 7.747,717 % 9584838
Due from clients (Note 9} 416,812 1,093,270
Client accounts receivabio (Note 4) 599076 443 517
Other recaivables 12,287 13,124
8,832,685 11303277
NOM-CURRENMT ASSETS
Fived assets (Nota 6) — 136,956 156,860
$ 8,969,651 § 11,455 837
AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Depositors' accounts (Notes 5 and 9) $ 3,183,319 3 5452331
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Mote ) 434,514 S06.225
Fees received in advance 364,045 245811
3,981,878 B 204 167
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital {Mota T) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained ﬁ;ningg 2,987,773 3,255 670
4,987,773 52565870
] 8,969,651 $ 11459 837

See nolas fo consolidated fnancial stalements
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for tho years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{axprassad in Uniled Stafes dofiars)

2021 2020
INTEREST INCOME 1] 41,671 § 63,993
INTEREST EXPENSE = 386
MET INTEREST INCOME 41,671 63,607
OTHER INCOME
Directorship, frustes and management fees (Note 5} 4,697,515 4,572,835
Miscellanecus 221,622 244,788
Rental income 38,400 3B.400
4,957 537 4855013
TOTAL INCOME 4,559,208 4,219,620
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits (Note 10} 2,645,420 2,543,805
Adminkstration {Note 9) 1,008,565 1,018,357
Rent expense (Note 5) 361,491 36143
Depreciation (Note &) 42 625 47,083
Expected credit loss (Mole 4) 10,000 -
4,067,105 4,070,708
MET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ¥ 232,103 § 248,914
See noles o consolidafed financial stalements
Page 4
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
fexpressad in United Slales dofiars)

Total

Retained sharehalder's

Share capital earnings @by

Balanca at December 31, 2018 - 2000000 § 2406756 § 4406756
Net income and comprehensive income = 248914 848 914
Dividends (Note 7) - - -
Balance af December 31, 2020 2,000,000 3,255 870 5,255 670
Mat income and comprehensive income = 532,103 932,103

Dividends (Note 7) — = (1,200,000} {1.200,00C)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 2000000 $ 22987773 § 4987773

Bae notes fo consalidated fnancral statements
Page 5
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{expressed in United States doliars)

2021 _ 2020
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mal income and comprehensive income ] 932,103 3 Ba8 914
Adjustrnents for items not affecting cash:
Depreciation 42 629 47053
974,732 BOS 957
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due from clients 682 458 (47,051)
Client accounts receivable {185,559) 48,332
Other receivatles B3v7 {6,686}
Prepaid expenses 5,735 12,704
Depositors' accounts (2,268,012) {1,473,722)
Accounts payable and accrued expanses (71,711} 27 a6T
Fees received in advance 118,434 11,848
(714,086) 1531,144)
INVESTING ACTIMITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (23,035) (26,100)
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid {1,200,000) -
MET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,837,121) {557 241)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,634 813 10,242.079
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR § 14TV $ 0684838
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for inlerest & . § 749
Sea noles fo consoldated fnancial siatements
Page 6
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
(expressed in United Stafes doiiars)

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid. (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman slands on June 15, 1920 as Queensgete Bank & Trust Company Lid, ("QBTC") and s 2
wholly-owmed subsidiary of Queensgate Group Lid. (the "Parent’), 2 company alsa incorporated in the
Cayman Iskands.

On January 2, 2009, QBTC undertook @ restructuring in order 1o separate the banking activites from
the trust activities. Subseguently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undertook a merger to re-combine
the bank and the frust activiies. On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name o Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Lid. The newly named compary continued as the entity formerly named
Clugensgate Trust Company Lid. and Is kcensed with & Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
Eeense and Mutlual Fund Administraticn bcense with the Cayman |zlands Monetary Autherty CCIMAT).

The Company has received an underaking from the Cayman [slands Government exempting it from afl

kocal meome, profits and capital gains taxes unti! February 1, 2031, No such taxes exist in the Cayman
Iskands at the present time.

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consoiklated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and refiect the fallowing policies:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporale the financial stalements of the Cempany and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries, Control is achigved when the Company:

+ has powar over the investee;
# s exposed, or has rights, (o variable ratums from ils involvernent with the investee; and
«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elemenis of control isted above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary beging when the Company obiaims control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and axpenses of a subsidlary
acguired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statermants of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains contral until the date when the Company ceases (o control
the subsidiary.

All gignificant intercompany ransactions and balances have been elimingted on consolidabon, Refer to
hote & for othar disclosures relating to the subsidianes.

Page 7
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed it United Slales doltars) {continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates

Financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS require management to make estimates and
assurmplions that affect the reponied amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilies at the date of the firancial statements ard the reported amounts of income and expense
during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalants include cash and short-term deposits with an orginal maturity of thres
menths or less,

Due from clients

Cue from clients are temporary cverdrafts given lo clients for which the carrying value approximates
fair value as such amounts bear interest at varable rates. Due from clients are recorded net of a
provision for expected credit losses.

Clfent accounts receivable and allowance for doubiful accounts

Client accounts receivable includes fee income recewvables generated from the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees and recaivables for disbursements made on behall of
clignts. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision for expected credit losses. Receivables
for disbursements made on behalf of clients do not have a related provision for axpected credit losses
as these balances typicaly represent unbilled disbursements that the Company expects o recover
once Dilied.

The provision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income based on the expecied
credit losses in receivable balances. These sre based upon management's knowledge of the current
condition of the Company’s chents.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended Dacember 31, 2021 and 2020

{expressed in United Stales dolars) {continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated al cosl less accumalated deprecigtion. Depreciation is calsulated using the
straight=line method and is based on (he estimaled iives as follows:

Furniture and computer equipment 3t0 15 years
Motor vehicles Byears

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the camying amount of its fixed assels 1o
detarmine whathar there is any indication that those assels have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to defermine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has
nol identified any assets for which ar impairment loss was recorded.

Interast Income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for all Interast bearing instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yield method.

Revenueg recognition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:
+ directosship, frugtee, management and other similar services provided o clients,
= miscellanecus senvices provided to clients and disbursement charges for servicas provided o
clignts in connection with the directorship, trustes and management services being provided;
and
« rental income for use of its office spacs.
Revenue is measurad based on the consideration that the Company is contracted to receive from ils
chenis and excludes amounts collecled on behall of third parties, The Company recognises revenues
on an accrual basis a5 performance obligations are satisfed.
Tha primary source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of directorship, trustes,
management, and registered office services to its clients. For these services, the Company recognises
revanuas over the contracted period of service which coincides with a calendar year. Where muliiple

services arg provided to a single client, the revenues generated from each type of service are
recognised separately.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{exprassed in United States dollars) {continued}

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recagnition (contnued)

Miscellaneous income includes disbursement fees charged fo clients for the Company’s overhead and
fees charged to clients for miscellaneous services such as copy senvices for meetings or courier costs.
Disbursement fee ravenue is charged based on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directarship,
trustee, managemant and other similar services and is recognised in the same pattern as the revenues
for those services, Fees charged to clients for miscollaneows senvices are recognised in revenue at the
point in time in which they are provided.

The Company récords rental income from leasing out their office space to third parties. The rental
income is eamed and recognised on a manth 1o month basis and s not based on a confract.

Foreign currency transfation

The Company's presentation currency is the United States dollar, Assats and liabilites dencminated or
accountad for in currencies other than United States dollars have been translated into United States
dollars gt the applicable exchange rates ruling at the statement of inancial position date. Foreign currency
transactions and income and expanse fems have heen transiated at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transacton, Gains and lgsses ansing from transkation are included in the consoadated
statements of comprahensive income,

Agsels under administration

Sacurifies, cash and other assets neld on behalf of clients in & rust, agancy or fiduciary capacity are not
included in these consolidated financial statements as such assets are nol the property of the Company,

Finarncial Instrurments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position
whan the Company becomes a parfy to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabiities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at smortised cost
or subsequently measured at fair value depending on their cash fiow charactenstics. Due o the short
term nature of the financial assets and habilittes hald by the Company, carmyirg value apgroximates fair
value.

Finarcial aseets are derecognisad when the contractual rights to the cash ficws from the asset expire,
or it transfers the fnancial asset and substantizlty all of the risks and rewards of cwnership of the assect
to gnother entity. Financial labitities are derescognised when tha Company's cbligaticns are discharged,
canceled, or they expire,

With IFRS &, the principie applied for the impairment of accounts recaivable is based on expacied cradit
osses. No provision for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended Decamber 31, 2021
and 2020,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(expressad in United States dollars) {conbnuead)

2. SBIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Fiduclary activities

The Company, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a parly to litigation and claims in the nommal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company’s lawyers,
ng provisions are required at December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Leases

Under IFRS 16 Leases, 3 lessse recognizes assels and liabilities for all lease arangements unless the
term is 12 months or less or the underlying 2sset has 2 low vahue, Due ta the shoet term nature of the one
legse contract (Mote 9) existing as at and during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Company nas recorded the manth to moath lease costs as rent expense on the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income,

New and revised IFRS standards in issoe but not yef effective

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards thal have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a material impact on the financial statements in future periods.

Critical zecounting judgement amd key source of estimation uncertainty

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels and kabilities.
Estimates are continualy evalugted and based on historical experience and other faclors including
expectations of future evenis that arz believed to ba regscnable under the circumstances, The key sreas
of judgement or estimation ara with regard to the expected useful economic Fves of fixed assels as well
as the recoverability of client aceounts receivable from clients and due from clients. The expected useful
ecanamic Iives of ixed assels are based on prior expenence of similar assets, Chent accounts receivable
and due from clients are messured a5 either a 12 month or lifefime ECL based on credd risk
considerations.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020

Call deposits 5 3a4TT § 4184838
Short-term fied deposits 4,500,000 5500000
§ 7747717 $ 9684838

Shor-term fixed deposits as at December 31, 2027 and 2020 mature within three months from: the ociginal
issied date.

Page 11

176/229



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
(expressed in United Stafes doilars} fecentnued)

4. CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounis receivable in respect of fee income earmned by the Company or disbursemants made on behalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

—_ e 2030

Fes income recelvables b 469,711 5 0,757
Recaivables for disbursements made on behalf of clients 128,365 132,760
Less: provision for expected credil losses =

3 599,076 3 443,517

Fee income recaivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the reparting pericd for which
the Company has not recognised a provision for expecled credil losses as there has nat been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are slill considered recoverable. |In determining the
recoverability of the fee income receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the receivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reparting period

Age of fee intome recetvables that are past due but not impaired

S | S
21 ko 180 days 3 25,718 3 1,560
181 to 380 days 75,730 52,100
COver 360 days 75,634 £3427
Tola! = past due but not kmpaired 3 178 G80 3 117,087

Movements in the provision for expecled credil losses were as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 5 . 3 F
Impairment losses reversed - .
Amounts written off during the year as uncofectible (10,000} -
Increase in provision 10.000 A== bl
Balance at end of year 3 - 5

To reduce exposurs to credit risk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its customers and defines
credit limits as part of its onboarding process. Credit quality and limits of the receivables portislio are
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the year,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended Dacember 31, 2021 and 2020

{expraased in United States dovars) icontinued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS
Depositors” accounts are classified as follows:

NS — 2020
Call deposits $ 3183318 §__ 5452331

6. FIXED ASSETS

Furniture and
computer
equipment Iotor vehicles Total
Coost;
Balance at December 21, 2019 5 741,880 3 372,854 3 1,114,734
Additions 26100 = 25,100
Dizposals = = #
Balance at December 31, 2020 TE7 980 372,854 1,140,834
Additionz 23035 = 23,035
Balance at Decamber 31, 2021 791,015 372,854 1,163,869
Accumulated depreciation;
Balance st December 31, 2018 BET 458 278,723 237,221
Depreciation expense 25,168 21,884 47,053
Disposals ] = =
Balance at December 31, 2020 GEZ 68T 301,607 984 274
Depreciation expense 26,243 16,3665 42629
Baiance at December 31, 2021 708,910 317,583 1,025,503
Net book value, December 31, 2020 5 86313 5 71,247 % 156,560
Met book value, December 31, 2021 3 82106 § 54861 § 136,966
Page 13
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

{sxpressed in United Stales doflars) {continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized;
10,000,000 Crdinary voling shares of $1 par value each

Issued:
2,000,000 Ordinary voting shares (20200 2,000,000 $ 2000000 $ 2,000,000

The Direclors may deciare dividends and distributions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or disiributions out of the funds of the Company.  No dividend or distribution shali be paid
except out of the realised ar unreakliged profits of the Company. For the year ended December 317,
2021, a dividend of 1,200,000 was declarad and paid {2020: § nil). The rights conferred upon the
holders of the shares of any ciass issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwizse
expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by the
creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith,

8. SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated financial statements include the acccunis of the Company and s wholiy-owned
subsidiaries, Tily Nominees Limited and Coultry Directors Lid., and Tilly Nominees Limited, in hem, s
parant to two whally-owned subsidiaries, Tily Directors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited (collectively,
the “Subsidiaries”), Al of the subsidianies listed below are licensad as Nominee (Trust) Companies with

ClkA,
Place of Propartian of awnarship
Prinzipal incorposation interast and voling power
Hame of subsidiary achvity and operation held by the Company
2021 2020
Provide nomines
Tilly Mominees Limited  shareholder services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Couttry Directors Lid director services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corpaorate
Tilly Directors Limited director services  Cayman Istands 100% 100%
Provide company
Tilly Secretaries Limited secretary services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%

The Company has nat provided firancial support (o its Subsidianes during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrichons on the Company’s abdlity 1o access
or use assets or settle fabiites of the Subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2021, guaranteas in the total amount of 3875 610 (2020: $875,610) have been issued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman Islands on benalf of its Subsidiaries.
Page 14
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

{expressed in Linited States doilars) {cantinued)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following related parly balances and

fransactions:
2021 2020
45 of December 31:
Due from clients 418,812 1.098,270
Cliznt accounts receivable 987 477
Depositors' accounis TE0.884 618,720
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,832 8,544
Eor the years ended December 31,
Direclorship, trustee and management fees 238,600 238,800
Directors’ fees {included in Administration expenses) 26,000 25,000
Renl expense 351,491 361,491

All ransactions with related parties are conducted on normal commerciai berms and at non-preferential
interest rates.

Certamn employees of the Company and cenain assels of the Company are also utiised by the Parent
tor its ongoing sperations, The employess” services and use of the assets is currently not rechargad to
the Parent and is nat separately quantifiable.

Some of the Company's employees are also providing directarship senvices to a number of clients who
have deposits and overdrafts with the Company.

The Company leases office spece from a related party. The annual lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is currently leasing the spaca on a month to month basis based on
the prior lease agreement.

10. PENSION PLAN
The Company has a defined contribulion pension scheme in place for all of its quabfying employeas.
Contributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescrbed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employees' portion.  Tho total pension cost

recognised during the year ended December 31, 2021 was 5143920 (2020: 5143 660) and is included
in salares and benefits in the conscldated slatemants of comprehensive income.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed i United Stafes dolars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instrumeant is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial ability
of another entity. The Company enters into contracts invohang financia! instruments during the normal
coufga of its business.

Risk exposures arising from financial instruments are monffored by management. The main risks
arising fram the Company’s financial instruments are credit and counterparty fsk, liguidity risk, market
risk, interest rate risk and cumency risk The exposure to, and management of these risks is
summarised befow. The year-end figures reported in these consolidated financisl statements for
financial instruments are reflective of the pasition held throsghoul the yvear and are congisient with tha
objectives, policies and strategies approved by management.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is (he risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the ather parly by failkng to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments which patentially expose
the Company o credit and countarparty risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, due from
clients and client acoounts receivable.

The Company manages ils axposure to credit and countarparty risk by placing cash and fived depasits
with a requlated financial institution in the Cayman |slands, only taking referred business, and
maonitaring cutstanding receivable balances, as discussed in Mol 4.

The Company has a concantration sk with all cash and cash equivalants being held by one financial
institution in the Cayman lslands,

During the yvear ended Decermber 31, 2021, approximately 47 76% (2020: 41%) of the Company’s
directorship, trustee and managemenl fees werd samead fram its three (2020 three) largest customers.
Mo other customers confributed mare than 0% fo the Company's directarship, trustee and
management fees during 2021 or 2020,

Liguidity risk

Liguedity risk is the risk that the Company will encounier difficully in meeting cbligabions assacated with
financial habilities.

The Company's objective is to maintain depositors’ accounts which have a rangs of maturities
consistent with ils assei base. Liguidity nisk is monitored by the Company's management to ensure
that the Company has sufficient liguid assets (o be able to meet its future expected cash oulflows. The
Company endeavors to match the termes of its liabilities and assets, primarily cash and cash eguivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors” accounts, and maintaing a significant proportion of its assets in cash
in order o manags hgladity sk, Refer to interest rata risk table disclasures for anaiysis of lowidily gap.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair valve or future cash flows of 2 finencial instrument will flucluate

because of changes in market prices. Market rigk for the Company comprisas interest rata risk and
curmency risk,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
faxpressed in United States dolars) teontinued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Intarest rata risk

Intesast rate fisk s the nisk that the fai value or future cash flows of a firancial instrument will luctuate
because of changes in market inferest rales.

The Company manages its interast rate risk by ensiering that the interast rate on assets {i.e. cash and
due from clients) equals or axceads that of tha relevant offseting lability (e depasitors' accounts).
The tables below summarise this matoning as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. tems are allecated fo
time bands by referance to the earlier of the next interast rate re-pricing date and the maturity date.

qu.
Effective
Intarast
Rate Less than  Grealor than
or Rango (%) _ On demand 3 months 3 months: Tatal
Monatary Assets:
Cash and cach squivalents 0006 § 3247717 % 4ED000D B - & T T4TTIT
Dise fram chents 5.26 416,812 - - 416,612
Client pccounts receivabie - 568,076 - - 98078
iher mmoshabies - 12287 - - 12,287
§ 4375B32 3 4500000 % - 5 __aTTREE2
Mongtary Liabilities:
Depasions’ accounts 0.005001 5 8L § = & = 5 Li8xle
Agcolnts payable and accrued
EAPANSES - 434814 - - 534514
§ 36ITR3S % - & - § 3817833
Sensltivity Tiquidity gap H 658059 § 4500000 § - % 5158050
Page 17
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
(exprassed in United States dolfars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interast rata Fisk (continued)
2020,
Eftoctive
Interost
Rate Less than  Greater than
or Range (%) _ On demand 3 months 3 manths Total
Monatary Assets:
Cash and cazh squnaiants 00i-DA5 5 4184838 5 EB00000 § - § 9584 F38
Dun from chanis 5.25 1,068,270 - - 1,068 270
Client sccounts receivaie - 43,517 - - 443517
Cither recehables - 13,124 - - 13,124
5 5740740 3 SE000D $ - £ 11240740
Monetary Liabiithes:
Deposlions’ accounds 00040005 § 5282331 § - % - § 646230
Accounts payatle and accrued
suptnzns i 506,225 - - 506,225
% S58BB55E % = % - 5. 5968555
Sensitivity/liguidity gap § (217,807 § 5500000 % - §_ 5282183

The Company i exposad to nsks associated with the affects of fluctuations @ prévailing lavels of fived
and floating interast rates on its cash fiows.

At December 31, 2021, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market interast rales had been 30
(2020: 30) basis points higher with all other varables held constant, sharehalder's aquity would have
been $1.444 lower (2020; $505 iower), If market interest rates had been 30 (2020: 30) basis points
lower with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity wauld have mereased by less than
$1,444 (2020: would have increased by less than $505) due to the fact that cerlain account balances
aarn interesl at a rate lower than 30 basis points.

At Decamber 31, 2021, with respect to the fixed rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
{2020: 30} basis points higher with all other variables held constant, sharehelder's equity wouwld have
baen 513,500 higher (2020 $16,500 higher). if markel interest rates had been 30 {(2020: 30) basis
points lower with all other variahles held constant, shareholder’s equity would have decreased by less
than 513,500 (2020: would have decreased by loss than $16,500) due to the fact that cedtain account
balances eam interest 2t a rate [ower than 30 basis points.

This analysis is basad on interast beaning instruments held at year-end, and assurrag the changa in
interest rates tock place st the beginning of the year and the inferest bearing instruments ware hald
constant throughout the reporting period. Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the possible change in market rates for the years enced December 31, 2027 and 2020,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

far the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(expressed in United States dofiars) {continued)

11, RISK MANAGEMENT (continuad)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the valug of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates,

The Company operates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly holds instruments with net exposures to the
following currencies: Great Britain pound and Cayman Islands dollar (2020: Great Britain pound and
Cayman |slands dollar). Since the Company prepanas iis financial statemants in United States doilars,
the Company's consclidated statements of financial posiion are affected by movements in the
exchange rate of the Great Britain pound and the United States dollar. The Cayman Islands dollar has
a fixed exchange rate against the United States doflar.  Translation gainsfiosses anmsing from these
exposures are reported net in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The table below shows the Company's curmency exposures being those transactional exposures that
give rise fo the net currency gains and iosses recognised in the consolidsted statements of
comprehensive income. Such exposures comprise the manetary labilties of the Company that are not
denominated in either the presentalfon currency or a curreéncy with a fixed rate of exchange fo the
presantation currency of the Comparny. To manage its currency risk, the Company may aporoximate
net foreign currency assats and liabiliies against each other, As of December 31, 2021 ang 2020,
thess exposures were as follows:

Significant net foreign currency monetary assets, December 31, 2021 and 2020 {ranskated into United

States dollars).
2021;
Mot foreign
Cash and cash Depositars’  curmency monetary
. ecuivalanis accounts assals
GEP 3 54586 5 - § 54,655
Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed States doliars) {cantinued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT [contnued)

Currency risk (contnued)

2020:
Met foreign
Cash and cash Depositors’ currency manetary
equivalents accounts assets
GBP -] 56638 5 (1,445) % £5,193

Had the United States dollar been stronger or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all ather variables held constant, the net resull for the year ended December 39, 2021 would
decreage or increase by 35456 (2020: 35,514).

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able fo confinue as a going
concearn while maximising the refurm to the shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and aquily
palance, The Company's overall sirategy remains unchanged from 2020,

The capital structure of the Company consists of issued Ordinary voting shares and retained earnings.
13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject o reguiatory capital requirements established by CIMA. Failure fo mest
minimum capital requirements can intiate certain actions by the regulator that, if underaken, could
have a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated financial siatements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescribed under The Banks and Trust Comparves Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that invoive quaniitative measunes
of the Cosmpany™s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet iterns as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The Company™s capital amounts and classification are alse subject to qualitative
judgrments by CIMA about components and risk wizightings.

The Campany is required al ali imes o maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at lzast 15% according o
current regulation and the provisions of its Banking license. The Company is in compliance with this
requirenent as at and for the years ended Docamber 31, 2021 and 2020,

Under tne terms of ils licenses, the Company is required fo maintain a minimum et worth of

KY D400, 000 (LUS5500,000), The Company is in compliznce with this reguirement as at and for the
years ended December 31, 2027 and 2020,

14. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financizl statements were approved by 2 committee of the Board of Directors and
authorised for issue on March 22, 2022,
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2022 25,920,000 31 7,235
1965
2021 12 1,135,000,000 1,389
BNY
BNY
BNY
BNY
One

2022 900 14 4,801

UFJ

160.89
One
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One 2000
(Financial Conduct Authority)

2022 15,976 257
1997
2010
The Standards Board for Alternative Investments
(The Hedge Fund Standards Board) SBAI
(The Standards) 2007 (The
Hedge Fund Working Group)
2008 SBAI
2013 Financial Conduct Authority
2001 12 2013
Financial Services Authority 1998 12 2001 11

Securities and Futures Authority
1999 10 Commodity Futures Trading Commission

(Commodity Trading Advisor)

(Commodity Pool Operator) 2003 10 (Securities and
Exchange Commission) (Investment Advisor)
1999 10 (National Futures Association)
UFJ
2022 405
Q)
(i)
(iii) (iv) w)
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1.1 1993
1.2
1960
1.3
@
1993 2020
(b) 2020
1.4
1.5 2021 12 12,451
3,145
2020
2020
1.6 (the Caribbean Financial Action
Task Force (Money Laundering)
2.1
CIMA
CIMA International Organization of Securities
Commissions Group of Offshore Banking Supervisors
2.2
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2.3

@
(b)

@

(b)

© ( )
2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020
15

CIMA
2.6

3.1
CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA

3.2

CIMA
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@) 80,000
®
CIMA
3.4
2020
CINA
15
80,000
4.1
CINA
21
CIMA
4.2 CIMA

@
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CINA
4(3)
4(3)
4(3)
100,000
CIMA
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(b)

©

(D

©)

4.3
CIMA
21

4.4 2006 12 27

CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA

5.1

5.2

CIMA

48

5.3
CIMA 3.2 CIMA
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5.4 CINA CIMA 10
CIMA
5.5 CINA
CINA
CINA
(@
()
©
()
® )
(i)
O)
(i) (A XVIIA
®) 12
© 8
( )
5.6 CIMA
5.7
CINA
5.8 CIMA 24,390 30,488
8,536 36,585
42,682
8,536

6.1
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@
)
©
()
O)
(i)
(i)
(iv)
)
(vi)
(vii)
®©) 1
Q)
@
)
O)
@
(9]
m 30
20
(m
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(m

6.2
@

(b)

©

CIMA

(D
1925

©)

®

@ 50

W) 150

Q)

6.3

@

(b)

1907

©
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(Tax Information Authority Law)(

)
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@
2016

(b)

©

(D —

(e) 50

CIMA
7.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

7.2
7.1

500
7.3
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

7.4 7.3 10
7.5 7.3

CIMA

10
7.6 CIMA
(Grand Court)

7.7 CIMA 7.9

@
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7.16  7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15
CINA CINA

7.17 7.15 CIMA
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One
2012 27
DIAM
50

50
50
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DIAM DIAM
Aspect
2021 11 30 DIAM
DIAM Aspect
2021 11 30
ISA
IESBA Code 1ESBA
Code
41 47 [
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Independent auditor”s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
not in its individual capacity but solely as Trustee of DIAM Cayman Trust —Aspect Managed Futures Fund,
a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

Inour opinion, the financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the financial position of DIAM Cayman
Trust —Aspect Managed Futures Fund (the Class Fund), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust as at 30 November 2021, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Class Fund®s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 30 November 2021;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholder for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(1ESBA Code) . We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the I1ESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Supplementary Schedule of
Investments (Unaudited) on pages 41-47, (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor™s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

223/229



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor”s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Class
Fund®s internal control.

) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Class Fund’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’ s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Class Fund in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent inwriting.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

30 March 2022

225/229



IFRSs

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020 12 31

IFRSs 2021 2020 12 31

1SAs

IESBA Code IESBA Code
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the “ Company” ), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder’ s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial
performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (1ESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company
' s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’ s financial reporting process.
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To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Page 2
Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’ s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche
March 22, 2022
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